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This research presentation report expresses our research opinions, which we have based upon interpretation of certain facts and observations, all of
which are based upon publicly available information, and all of which are set out in this research presentation report. Any investment involves
substantial risks, mcluding complete loss of capital. Any forecasts or estimates are for illustrative purpose only and should not be taken as limitations
of the maximum possible loss or gain. Any information contained n this report may include forward looking statements, expectations, pro forma
analyses, estimates, and projections. You should assume these types of statements, expectations, pro forma analyses, estimates, and projections may
turn out to be incorrect for reasons beyond Spruce Pomt Capital Management LI.C’s control. This 1s not mvestment or accounting advice nor
should it be construed as such. Use of Spruce Point Capital Management LLC’s research is at your own risk. You should do your own research and
due diligence before making any investment decision with respect to securities covered herein.

You should assume that as of the publication date of any presentation, report or letter, Spruce Point Capital Management LLC (possibly along with
or through our members, partners, affiliates, employees, and/or consultants) along with our subscribers and clients has a short position m all stocks
(and/or are long puts/short call options of the stock) covered herein, including without imitation Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Ltd. (“CSTE”), and
therefore stand to realize significant gains in the event that the price of its stock dechnes. Following publication of any presentation, report or letter,
we intend to continue transacting in the securities covered theremn, and we may be long, short, or neutral at any time hereafter regardless of our initial
recommendation.

This 1s not an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any security, nor shall any security be offered or sold to any person, in any jurisdiction in
which such offer would be unlawful under the securities laws of such jurisdiction. Spruce Point Capital Management LLC is not registered as an
mvestment advisor, broker/dealer, or accounting firm.

To the best of our ability and belief, as of the date hereof, all mformation contamed herein 1s accurate and reliable and does not omit to state
material facts necessary to make the statements heremn not misleading, and all information has been obtained from public sources we believe to be
accurate and reliable, and who are not msiders or connected persons of the stock covered herem or who may otherwise owe any fiduciary duty or
duty of confidentiality to the issuer, or to any other person or entity that was breached by the transmission of information to Spruce Point Capital
Management LI.C. However, Spruce Point Capital Management LL.C recognizes that there may be non-public information in the possession of
Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Litd. or other nsiders of Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Ltd. that has not been publicly disclosed by Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Litd..
Therefore, such information contained herein 1s presented “as 1s,” without warranty of any kind - whether express or implied. Spruce Point Capital
Management LLC makes no other representations, express or implied, as to the accuracy, timeliness, or completeness of any such mformation or
with regard to the results to be obtained from its use. All rights reserved. This document may not be reproduced or disseminated in whole or in part
without the prior written consent of Spruce Point Capital Management LLC.
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Spruce Pont Is Short Caesarstone

* L (CSTE) For the Following Reasons:

SEC FOIA Request For CSTE’s Quartz Contracts Show Substantial Cost Pressure: CSTE’s confidentiality period
for its key quartz supply contracts lapsed on Dec 31, 2014. A FOIA was quickly filed and found that quartz, its key raw
F material cost for its quartz countertops, rose substantially by ~20% in 2014, yet they told investors in its SEC filings the
impactwas just 4%. Before acquiring these documents, CSTE used to request a 1yr confidential period, now they have
requested 5yr confidential period coverage (what are they hiding?). CSTE just invested $115mto open its new U.S.
production facility and has indicated it still does not have long-term quartz supply agreements, exposing them to
increased margin pressure

F Our Independent Lab Tests Show CSTE’s Samples May Contain Less Quartz Than Advertised: We ordered
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product samples directly from CSTE (along with samples from 7 competitors) and sent them to a material testing lab.
Our tests suggests that CSTE’s quartz countertops contain approximately 88-89% quartz vs. the 93% advertised
industry benchmark. CSTE’s samples contained among the lowest % of quartz among all of the samples tested. In light
of CSTE’s rising quartz costs, it is possible that it is mitigating price increases by including less quartz. Numerous
product quality complamts about chipping / stammg may also support our conclusions

: CSTE prominently touts its quartz
product as “premium” and lists it as the #1 key investment highlight in its mvestor presentation. In light of our lab testing
results, and commoditized nature of its products, we believe this positioning may be misleading. With litle more than
style being the main product differentiator, we find it difficult to believe CSTE can maintain its prices while new
competitors from China and Europe enter the U.S. market at lower price points up to 25% less. The recent Chinese
Yuan devaluation will add further price pressure. We obtained dealer price quotes to support our claim of price
pressures. Further, we note that CSTE’s R&D headcount and margin have been shrinking every year and its largest
competitor, Cosentino has launched a new super premium material called Dekton. Early indications show it is gaining
rapid traction
Questionable Market Share Gains: CSTE's story to investors is that its North American market is growing, and itis

F gaining market share. It cites a custom, paid-for, research provider paid for by CSTE called Freedonia Market Research.
Since 2010, the report indicates its market share in Australia has declined, Canadian market share has been flat (2012 -
2014), but that it is gaining significant market share in the U.S. - up from 14% in 2010, to 19% in 2014. Ascertaining true
market shares are difficult given all are private companies (ex: CSTE), so we sourced proprietary U.S. import shipping
data collected from port documents. Since CSTE is Israeli-based and dependent on importing to the U.S. market, we
believe our data is highly reliable, and it indicates that its market share may not be growing
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Margins May Be Significantly Overstated: CSTE’s gross margins of 42% are substantially higher than its peers in
the building products sector which average 22%. Because itis the only publicly traded quartz countertop company, it
is difficult to disprove its margins. However, we’ve pulled private financials for Cosentino S.A. (largest Spanish
competitor) along with other private financials for ltalian stone and countertop makers and find that CSTE’s margins
appear vastly superior. We've also obtained CSTE's Australian and Singapore subsidiary filings which indicate gross
margins of 24.7% and 31.6%, respectively. We believe currency effects are masking up to 7% gross margin erosion.
We also find its raw material costs to revenues to be abnormally low. There are also many related party transactions
with its largest shareholder that could enable operating margin overstatement. We also question CSTE’s distribution
deal through IKEA, which is inconsistent with its premium brand image and carries lower margins

Unguantifiable Product Liability for Silicosis-Related Deaths: CSTE is a party to a growing number of lawsuits
related to death and injury as it relates to injuries suffered by workers and fabricators of its products in Israel (from

14 in 2012, to 60 today). A single plaintiff and motion for class action certification alleges a $56m damage. CSTE’s
insurer said itwould only be partially covered, thus exposing CSTE to a material risk. CSTE is also in the process of
opening its new facility in the U.S. and OSHA has recently warned about the dangers of silicosis, specifically
highlighting issues in Israel. Increasing regulatory scrutiny could drive up its cost of doing business

Auditor Concerns. Signs of Financial Strain: CSTE is audited in Israel by Kost Forer Gabbay & Kasierer. Two
recent inspection reports revealed audit deficiencies including failure to perform sufficient procedures to test

revenue and test the existence of inventory. Upon closer inspection, we find CSTE has abnormal days sales
outstanding, payables, and inventory turnover ratios relative to peers

Cracks in the Story, Massive Overvaluation, Majority Owner Liguidating: CSTE's price recently corrected after
Q2’15 earnings beat Wall St. estimates, but it cut its sales range from $515-$525m to $495-$505m, while

maintaining its EBITDA guidance. We believe this is the canary in the coal mine, and CSTE's EBITDA margins
appear overstated. CSTE is at risk of missing its goals in light of flat import tonnage growth and rising competition.
CSTE trades at 3.4x and 13.5x 2015 Sales and EBITDA, respectively, a huge premium to building products peers at
1.3x and 12.0x on the premise it can maintain share and grow sales 15% p.a. We believe CSTE should trade at a
discount to peers of 8x - 10x EBITDA given our concerns about product + earnings quality (sales growth slowing +
margin pressures), its shares would be worth $11 - $29 (40% — 75% downside) on a normalized EBITDA margin
range. Since its 2012 IPO, its shareholder has reduced ownership from 79.0% to 32.6%; we expect continued sales s




Quartz Supply Contracts, Lab
1 ests Suggest Product and
Financial Misrepresentations
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Environment First.”

Sustainable Standards and Certifications

1SO 14001 and 9001 Certification: Caesarstone is the first quartz surfacing company
to receive ISO 14001 and 9001 Environmental Management Systems certification. This
international standard provides a procedural framework to create policies and solutions
that will assist Caesarstone reach environmental targets.

OHSAS 18001 Certification: Certifies Caesarstone as compliant with Occupational
Health and Safety Management System specifications - taking a proactive approach to
its occupational health and safety risks.

ANSI/NSF Standard 51 - Food Equipment Materials: Caesarstone is safe for use in
food preparation areas and is easy to clean and sanitize.

GREENGUARD Indoor Air Quality and GREENGUARD Children and Schools:
Certifies Caesarstone as a low-VOC (volatile organic compound) product complying
with California’s Department of Health Services Standard Practice (CA Section 01350)
for chemical emissions from building products used in schools, offices and other
sensitive environments.

USGBC: Caesarstone ranks high with the United States Green Building Council, crediting
entrepreneurs and contractors using our materials with LEED points — making Caesarstone
the natural partner in advanced projects, built according to green construction practices.

Sustainable Composition of Product

Caesarstone —the original quartz surface
Caesarstone quartz surfaces are the ultimate
combination of nature and technology.
Caesarstone surfaces consist of 93%
crushed quartz and retain the cool tactile touch
of natural stone. As a non-porous material,
Caesarstone avoids mold and mildew.

Source: Caesarstone website

Caesarstone Dealers/Distributors

I * 939% quartz, an abundant natural resource and by-product from mining other minerals. I

CSTE is highly dependent on portraying itself as
“‘premium” to consumers and its investors. [t
advertises itself as “93% quartz” to the public, and
also allows its distributors to make the same claim!

* Low volatile organic compound (VOC) emissions, contributing to indoor-air quality.
* Less toxic than wood according to the UPITT standard in New York City building code.
+ Continually developing recycled colors to add to our product line.

Source: Caesarstone Technical Data Manual (here)

Creative Countertops (here) American Grantt (here)
S&W Kitchens (here)
Sunset Granite (here)

Stone LA (here)
Madeira Stone (here)

We will show you how their advertising
appears to be flawed



http://media.caesarstoneus.com/pdf/CS_TDM_0511.pdf
http://www.sandwkitchens.com/ceasar
http://www.americangranit.com/caesarstone.html
http://www.mystonela.com/#!caesarstone-quartz/cilw
http://www.madeirastone.com/172/caesarstone-quartz-kitchens-warranty-eco-friendly-non-porous-natural/
http://www.sunsetgranite.com/global/countertops/quartz/
http://www.creativeincounters.com/products/caesarstone/
http://www.caesarstoneus.com/en/Pages/Catalog_Download.aspx
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Lab 1esting Results Suggest CSTE's
SaaieR st Countertops May Not Contain
The Advertised Quartz Content

A majority of quartz countertops in the marketplace, including Caesarstone, advertise their products as 93% quartz

We collected quartz countertop samples from a 8 different manufacturers and engaged the Rutgers University Department of Mate rials
Science & Engineering to conduct a Thermogravimatric Analysis (TGA). Two runs were conducted on each sample

In order not to bias the researcher, we did not inform the lab which brand we were investigating

Simply stated, a TGA analysis involves putting the samples in a furnace and raising the temperature to 600 °C where the inorganic
materials such as resins would burn off at high temperatures, and reveal the indicative quartz content

A countertop with 93% quartz would experience a weight loss of approximately 7% (greater weight loss =less quartz content). As can
be seenfromthe table,two Caesarstone samples ranked among the highest average weight loss at 10.5%and 11.3% indicating
that its quartz contentwas 3.5 —4.5%less than advertised. The only sample that performed worse was one of the Chinese import

samples from Element Quartz!

Hanstone / Quartz Fusion / Canada 9.56 9.91 9.74 0.25
Quartz Master / Maori Island / Asia 8.56 9.26 8.91 0.49
Natural Quartz from MSI / Boletus / Asia 10.28 10.39 10.34 0.07
Silestone (Cosentino) / Cream Urban / Spain 8.44 6.79 7.62 1.17
LG Viatera / Silver lake / U.S. 8.44 6.80 7.62 1.16
Element Quartz / Fantasy EQS101 / China 13.01 13.15 13.08 0.10
Element Quartz / Toasted Almond EQS118 / China 7.57 6.55 7.06 0.72
Cambria Summerhill Coastal Collection / U.S. 9.76 9.11 9.43 0.45
Caesarstone / Raven 4120 / Israel 9.48 11.54 10.51 1.45
Caesarstone / Calcutta Nuvo 5131 / Israel 11.31 11.30 11.31 0.004

Note: Ouranalysis is inherently based on a limited sample size. Product samples in some cases are marked with warnings that the actual product may vary from the sample
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Caesarstone samples test poorly against competitor samples:

+ The graphs below presents the graphical results of the TGA Analysis for Run 1 and Run 2, respectively. As can be seen the samples all
achieve a baseline Wt. % Loss at about 500°C meaning the majority of all the organic content has been completely evolved, hence
comparison of the values at 600°C to add an additional level of confidence

* One notable event occurs for the Cambria sample in Run 1 at about 750°C, this is likely some form of phase transformation present in one
of the inorganic Quartz materials, sometimes known as calcination when a carbonate group is evolved from an inorganic mineral. Itis not
present in Run 2 and irrelevant for this analysis

« Ultimately, it is the expert opinion of the Testing Lab that there are statistically different values between the average binder contentin these
samples. It is outside the realm of their expertise to understand how the amount of resin binder improves the overall quality of a Quartz
synthetic countertop. However, one can speculate that the true engineered quality component of the countertop structure is likely the resin
material and the more that is used the more the overall properties can be tailored to achieve a final result beyond aesthetic qualities

Run 1 Comparison Run 2 Comparison
102 ——EQS118 Toasted 102 —— EQS118 Toasted
Almond Almond

100 —Vidgera 100 —\Videra

g8 Silestone B8 Siletone
8\? o5 QM5022 M aori Island i 96 —— QM5022 M zori Island
:_ 1 —— 4120 Raven = 84 —— 4120 Raven
- . Q0 g2 VEDS
R0 2 — V623 D MVE23
g 0 Cambria g 20 Cambria

88

Boletus

Boletus

CalacattaNuvl 5131

Calcattanuwd 5131

— E05101 Fantasy ——EQS5101 Fantasy

0 200 400 600 BOO D00

- ¢ o Temperature (°C)
emperature(°C) Both Caesarstone samples

Both Caesarstone samples
fall well below the 93%
threshold level

near the bottom indicating
approx. 88% quartz content
(second lowest only to a

China import) 10
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Substantial Quartz Cost Increase Could Motivate CSTE To Use Less Quartz In its Products To Save Costs

(© caesarstone’

February 6, 2012
To
Mikroman Madencilik Mining
Hisarardl Keyo
Yatagan Mugla
Turkey
Dear Murat, Serhat, Karabay

Following our hereisa of our re supply during 2012.

1. Quantities ;
Caesarstone's working plan for year 2012 is as follows:

Product Quantity 2012 (tons) |
2.5-4.( 1700
2-2.5 2300
.7- 6500
4 .54 7800
2 15000
6 .1-0. 7000
7 G 7500
8 400# 20000

The nbove is Caesarstona 's working plan with a purchases non-binding pmjec!lon for year mtz (tl

). As always, C: will deliver to Mik a bindil
monthly basls. and Mitroman shall supply to CaesarStone all such Purchase on‘kn up to the ma.. -
Quantities.

05

Casesarstone
Supply Contracts
with Mikroman
Contradictits
Explanation, Show
~20% Increasein

Quartz Costs

2. Prices - during 2012 the Mtromaq will charge from Caesarstone the following prices:

fraction 0,1-4.0 - 143 USS$ per ton FOB lzmir
0.062-0.2 (G) -125 US$ per ton FOB zmir
4004 {powder) — 140 USS$ per ton FOB izmir

Payment terms shall be as applied during 2011.

This serves as an to the agy entered C and Mitr on

27,2010 and an mteqral part thereof.

If the foregoing_ meets with your approval and acceptance, please so indicate by signing both
s "‘gi mrAgreeynwt as provided below and return one fully executed copy to us.

08 02.2912
Date

ot
WMikoman Madendilk Mining

gy: Moot flecmi Seey

Kibbutz Sdot-Yam MP Menasha 38805, Israel  T+9724 6109368  F + 972 4626] 268

MWVi.Caesarstone.com

Source: SEC exhibitfilings, received under Freedom of Information Request

Confidential Treatment
Requested

%5

(& caesarstone’

December 19, 2013

To

Mikroman Madencilik Mining
Hisarardi Koyo

Yatagan Mugla

Turkey

Dear Murat, Serhat, Karabay,

F ing our di: and in contil ion with the Ag entered b

summary of our agreement re supply during 2014.

uson 2012 hereis a

Note the discussion

imated Qua 2
Caesarstone's working plan f{ year 2014 is as follom

Product uantity 2014
; = — 14332 that these are for
1.2-2. 208

3 L ey 2014 prices

5 ,2-0.. 23000

6 1-0.3 10000

7 0.063-0.2 (G) 10000

8 400# 21000

The above is Caesarstone s workmg plan with a non-binding purchases projection from Mikroman for

year 2014 (the *Esti *) for the ab products (the "Products"). Caesarstone's
actual orders may sugmﬁcantly differ from the Esti Q ities. As always, C will deliver to
Mikroman a binding Purchase Order on @ monthly basns, and Mnkroman shan supply to Caesamnne all
such Ledace Lo 1IN ﬁ

Estimated Quantities.

2. Prices - For quantities of the Products that shall be ardered by Caesarstone during year 2014, Mikroman
will charge from Caesarstone the following prices per ton, US$170 (one hundred and seventy US Dollar),
FOB Izmir.

Kibbutz Sdoz - Yam P b4

3. Payment terms - for Products that shall be ordered by Caesarstone during year 2014 payment terms
shall be the same as applied between the parties herato during year 2013.

4. The products will be supplied by Mikroman in a timely manner and in accordance with Caesarstone's
quality standards and specifications as will be updated by Caesarstone in writing from time to time, in
accordance with each Caesarstone's purchase order.

5. Mikroman will maintain in confidence the terms of this agreement as well as any other confidential
information of C. without time limi

6. This agreement and its p'rfmmame will be governed by the English law and subject to the jurisdiction
of the competent courts in England. Without d g from the lity and validity of the
foregoing, Caesarstone shall be entitled, at its sole discretion, to initiate legal proceedings related to this
Agreement in Turkey, and in such case only same proceeding will be subject to the jurisdiction of the
competent courts in Turkey,

e 38805 kad T 297246109 368

wuqr; $A2BT 2B s sapdie e - i 11
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Caesarstone Tells Investors About Rising

Quartzite Prices for 2014

‘In 2013, one supplier in Turkey, Mikroman Madencilik San
ve TIC.LTD.STI ("Mikroman"), supplied approximately 48%
of the Company's quartzite on a purchase order basis. The
price of quartz was relatively stable during the last few
years, but recently we have experienced an increase
when renewing our annual supply contracts for 2014
with the Turkish quartzite suppliers given the
increasing global demand for quartz. Any future
increases in quartz prices may adversely impact our
margins and net income.”

Source: 2013 20-F Annual Report, Filed May 5, 2014 (here)

4 % Quartz Price
Ccurzzte

Caesarstone Explains 2014 Results Affected by

Just ~4% Price Increase

“The price of quartz was relatively stable until 2013.
However, given increasing global demand for quartz,
quartzite prices increased by approximately 4% in
2014 and have increased at approximately the same
rate in 2015. Any future increases in quartz prices may
adversely impact our margins and net income.

Source: 2014 20-F Annual Report, Filed March 12, 2015 (here)

12


http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1504379/000117891315000862/zk1516386.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1504379/000117891315000862/zk1516386.htm
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' Now Wants

Is the significant increase in the confidentiality period ared flag for additional margin erosion?

CSTE Used To Request Short-Term Confidential

Treatment For Quartz Supply Agreements —
Filed June 2, 2014

CSTE’s Latest Request for Confidential Treatment of

Quartz Supply Agreement —
Filed April 3, 2015

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
May 29, 2014

ORDER GRANTING CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Ltd.

CSTE Used To Just

Ask For

Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Ltd. submitted an application under Rule 2 i iali
confidential treatment for information it excluded from the Exhibits to a F¢ CO nflde ntia I Ity For
Under 1 year

on May 13,2014,

Based on representations by Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Lid. that this information
qualifies as confidential commercial or financial information under the Freedom of
Information Act, 5 U.S.C. 552(b)(4), the Division of Corporation Finance has determined
not to publicly disclose it. Accordingly, excluded information from the following
exhibit(s) will not be released to the public for the time period(s) specified:

File No. 1-35464 - CF#31161

Exhibit 4.5 through December 31, 2014

For the Commission, by the Division of Corporation Finance, pursuant to
delegated authority:

Kevin M. O'Neill
Deputy Secretary

Source: Confidential Request at SEC (here) and (here)

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

April 3, 2015
ORDER GRANTING CONFIDENTIAL TREATN .
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT O CSTE Wants its
Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Ltd. Qua rtz Su pply

File No. 1-35464 - CF#32333 Agree me nt N OW

Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Lid. submitted an application under R Sea Ied FO r AI mOSt

confidential treatment for information 1t excluded from the Exhibits { |
5 years!

on March 12, 2015.

Based on representations by Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Ltd. that this information
qualifies as confidential commercial or financial information under the Freedom of
Information Act, 5 U.8.C. 552(b)(4), the Division of Corporation Finance has dete,
not to publicly disclose it. Accordingly, excluded information from the followi
exhibit(s) will not be released to the public for the time period(s) specified:

December 31, 2019 I
December 31, 2024
December 31, 2024
December 31, 2024
December 31, 2024
December 31, 2024
December 31, 2024
December 31, 2024
December 31, 2019

| Exhibit4.5  through
Exhibit 4.19  through
Exhibit 420  through
Exhibit 421 through
Exhibit 422  through
Exhibit 423  through
Exhibit 424  through
Exhibit 4.25  through
Exhibit 426  through

For the Commission, by the Division of Corporation Finance, pursuant to
delegated authority:

Brent J. Fields
Secretary

13


http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1504379/999999999714010427/9999999997-14-010427-index.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1504379/999999999715007423/filename1.pdf
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Warning: CSTE Offers Conflicting
Explanations For Margin Contraction

What is really driving margins; FX, dilutive IKEA deals, Quartz; can CSTE precisely explin? Or is this another potential red flag of

further margin contraction?

$inmillions
2011 2012 2013 2014
Total Sales $259.7 $296.6 $356.6 $447.4
% growth 31% 14% 20% 25%
Raw Materials Costs $77.7 $84.6 $97.2 $123.7
Raw Materials (% of COGS) (1) 50% 50% 50% 48%
Raw Materials Cost Growth 8.9% 14.9% 27.3% |
Polyester and Polymer Costs $32.6 $34.7 $41.8 $53.2
Raw Materials (% of Raw Materials) (1) 42% 41% 43% 43%
Sensitivity to 10% polyester price inc 1.3% 1.2% 2.0% 1.2%
| Polyester and Polymer Cost Growth 6.3% 20.5% 27.3% |
Cost of Quartz $25.6 $28.8 $29.2 $38.4
Quartz Cost (% of Raw Materials) (1) 33% 34% 30% 31%
Sensitivity to 10% quartz price inc N/A N/A 0.9% 0.9%
| Quartz cost Growth 12.2% 14%  31.5%|
Cost of Goods Sold (COGS) $155.4 $169.2 $194.4 $257.8
growth 28.9% 8.9% 14.9% 32.6%
Gross Profit $104.3 $127.4 $162.1 $189.7
margin 40.2% 43.0% 45.5% 42.4%

(1) Disclosed orimplied fromSEC 20-F Filings

2014 Annual Report (page 43): “In2014, gross profit
margins decreased mainly due to unfavorable exchange
rates, increased IKEA business related to fabrication and
installation activities, which comes with lower gross margin
and a non-recurring $3.5 million credit to cost of revenues
from2013.”

And later a slightly different story (page 49): “..cost of
revenues increased primarily due to volume increases and,
to a lesser extent, due to the IKEA installation and fabrication
component. Also contributing to the increased cost of
revenues werethe elevated production levels of our
differentiated super natural collection, which, despite
incurring a premium in price from consumers, carries higher
manufacturing costs, and an increase in quartz raw material
prices” (1)

Annual Report (page 35): “The price of quartz was relatively
stable until 2013. However, given increasing global demand
for quartz, guartzite pricesincreased by approximately 4%

in 2014 and have increased at approximately the same
rate in 2015. Any future increases in quartz prices may

adversely impact our margins and net income.”

CFO on the Q4 Conf Call: “Quartz prices went up and that

caused around less than 60 basis points impact on gross
margin for Q4. In 2015, we expect some additional pressure
from quartz pricing, again, notmuch less than 60 basis points.”

(1) Oddly, inits 2013 Annual Report (page 39), CSTE attributed its

gross margin expansion to its Super Natural introduction! 14


http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1504379/000117891314001621/zk1414642.htm
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Stone Fabricators (CSTEs Main Customers) Are
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CSTE supplies its products primarily to fabricators, who in turn resell them to contractors, developers, builders and consumers. CSTE
says in its 20-F, “Direct sales accountedfor 86.6% of revenues and are mostly to fabricators.”

It is critically important to understand what fabricators are saying about the state of the market, and not just take what the

company says at face value
According to Stone World's 2015 Fabricator Survey:

The percentage of fabrication shops processing both natural stone and quartz surfacing has remained consistent for the last three

years at 78%in 2014, 79% in 2013 and 76%in 2012

The percentage of fabricators indicating that small margins are their greatest challenge increased from 26% to 37% (2014 — 2015)
When asked about the level of competition in the stone market, 41% said it increased vs. 2013 while 42% say it stayed the same

If CSTE’s large st customer base is worried about smaller margins, what do you think CSTE is also worried about?

2015 Survey 2015 Survey
FIGURE 7 FIGURE 10
Compared to 2013, how was competition in the stone What is fhe greofest chollenge facing sfone
market in 20147 fabricators in lodoy’s morkefplace?
Decreased: 18% Smoller margins on Compelition from low-end

Increased: 41%

current products and
services: 37%

Source: Stone World 2015 Fabricator Survey (here) and 2014 Survey (here)

fobricators: 49%

2014 Survey

FIGURE 11
What is the greatest chall facing stone fabri s in
today’s marketplace?

[« son from al 4
materials (Corian, concrete, wood, efc): 5%

Change in
residental
industry: 5% Other: 3%
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http://www.stoneworld.com/articles/88243-stone-world-fabricator-survey-shows-expected-sales-revenue-to-increase
http://www.stoneworld.com/articles/87823-stone-world-fabricator-market-forecast
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-
BBB

Better Business Bureau

THIS BUSINESS IS NOT BBB ACCREDITED
Caesarstone, Inc.

(818) 779-0999

6840 Hayvenhurst Ave, Van Nuys, CA 91406-4717
http://caesarstoneus.com

| Onascale of A*to F

F Reason for Rating
BBB Ratings System Overview

“BBB did not receive a
response from Caesarstone
related to warranty
complaints”

yelpss

Caesarstone

7 reviews

"I think Caestarstone is a beautiful product. It

looks great and the warranty sounds

great. But I would NOT recommend this
roduct at all. I truly regret my decision to

install this product in my kitchen”

“The countertop looks fabulous WHEN it is

clean. However, cleaning it is quite a process. The
countertop shows watermarks, streaks from the
"method" cleaner they recommend and scratches are
very visible. The countertops also chip VERY easily”

\}

"Be_wary of using this product for two reasons. It
ins an ratch ily and they will n Il
licensed contractors, only certified fabricators”

"I had the Caesarstone rep come to our home

twice. Both times he worked on several spots with
his bag of tricks. So I learned how to eliminate
spots, but they just keep coming day after day. AND
THESE ARE WATER SPOTS!H!”

Bottom line, don't believe the CS hype - if a
cellphone leaves an imprint, that tell's it all! I would
never purchase this product again. If anyone thinks
that the CS warranty covers everything - guess
again.

Investigator

Helping You Sleuth The Best Kitchen Surfaces

"I have had the black Caesarstone
installed 6 years ago. It has chipped in 3
places no impact either. It has one scratch
in it. It has dulled out. I would never buy
this product again”

"I work at a marble shop. Caesar stone

have problems on slabs from time to time.
I say 10-20% of the time. Their customer
service is non-exist”

“Can’t say anything good about my brown
Caeserstone countertops. I have white
pitting marks that range from a pin head
size to a pea size all over two of my
counters”

"My whole experience with the installers and the
Caeserstone reps has been a joke but I am not
laughing.

“In my previous apartment, where I lived for 6
years, I had granite countertops, and I didn't
have any problems. I so much regret that I
choose this Caesar stone. I am trying to get it
replaced, but I am not sure I will be successful. I
am telling all my friends and people I know
never to choose Caesar stone and I want to
warn anybody who comes across this post to be

Source Better Business Bureau (here)

Source Yelp (here)

Source Countertop Investigator (here)
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http://www.bbb.org/losangelessiliconvalley/business-reviews/manufacturers-and-producers/caesarstone-in-van-nuys-ca-264385
http://www.yelp.com/biz/caesarstone-san-leandro
http://countertopinvestigator.com/caesarstone-countertops/
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tve to Closest Peers

+ We often find revenue per employeeto be a reliable indicator of problems when examining company financials. In this case, we have
compared CSTE’s results vs. three of its direct private competitors in stone and countertop surface manufacturing

» We fail to understand how CSTE has significantly higher revenue per employee and continued to growits sales efficiency every yearin
light of the fact that: 1) The company explicitly stated that it has limited ability to outsource any part of its manufacturing to third parties
(which could understate its employee count) and, 2) That is has experienced temporary inefficiencies in expanding new production lines
and products and 3) Claiming to reduce 3 party distributor sales in favor of higher direct sales

Revenue Per Employee

$450,000
$400,000
8 $350,000
B
g  $300,000
o
g  $250,000
g
& $200,000
¢
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000
$0
Cambria Levantina Cosentino Caesarstone Caesarstone Caesarstone
(US)-2014 (Spain)-2013 (Spain)-2013| (Israel)-2012 (Israel) -2013 (Israel) - 2014
Sales: $250m $210m $337m $335m $361m $447m
Avg. Total Employees: 1,100 985 1,121 861 935 1,047
Avg. Sales, Mktg, Support Employees: N/A N/A N/A 239 266 295
Third-party distributor sales: N/A N/A N/A 13.4% 13.0% 11.8%

Source: SEC and Spanish Filings. Average employees calculated from year beginning and ending employees. Cambria figures estimated from public article
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http://www.startribune.com/business/284917381.html?page=2&c=y
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* As a producer of a commoditized building products, CSTE’s gross margins are outrageously higher, with no clearly
identifiable reason, than any publicly traded U.S. company tied to housing products including doors, pools, windows,

decking, flooring and ceilings, and cabinets

+ CSTE competes directly with foreign private companies, so we pulled financials for leading stone manufacturing and
countertop makers in both Spain and Italy. Due to differences in financial reporting standards, we compared CSTE’s
disclosures of raw materials usage to total revenues, and found they reported a materially lower margin

Outrageously High Gross Margin Relative to

Leading U.S. Building Products Peers

45%

40%

35%

30%

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%
DOOR AMWD PGEM NX APOG BECN AWI NCFT MAS POOL TREX CSTE

Peers based on 2014 results: Masonite (DOOR), American Woodmark (AMWD), Ply
Gem (PGEM), Quanex Building Products (NX), Apogee (APOG), Beacon Roofing (BECN),
Armstrong Worldwide (AWI), Norcraft (NCFT), Masco (MAS), Pool Corp, Trex (TREX)

Source: SEC Filings

Suspiciously Low Raw Materials/ Revenuesvs.

Foreign Stone and Countertop Makers

60%

50% 47% 48%
)
40% 39%
35%

30% 27%
20%
10%

0%

Caesarstone Stone Levantina Cosentino St.
(Israel) Italiana (Spain) (Spain) Margherita
(1taly) (1taly)

Source: Foreign Filings, Italy and Spain
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http://www.registroimprese.it/
https://www.registradores.org/

Warning: Financials Not Adding Up to
Closest Spanish Peer Cosentino
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(Sociadod Uriporsonal
Cosentino is a global, Spanish, family-owned company that Cuentas de Pérdidas y Gansncias
produces and distributes high value innovative surfaces for the D o dictomire 0 2078 y 2002
world of design and architecture. For the yearended 2013, Expresadas on puras!
Cosentino reported revenue of €264m ($337m) o
Cosentino’s brands include Silestone®, Dekton® and Sensa by mporse nato & Ia cirs de negacios o2 o e
Cosentino® — all technologically advanced surfaces for creating Prestsciones e servicios o 3amam. 139659
spaces and unique designs for the home and public areas. e 5 PRGN AT P ot 40 il 338527
Silestone’s quartz countertop products are distributed in the U.S. ~ [reios realizndos por s emprasa pars su activo - porgeord

through Home Depot (here)

Otrds ingresos de explotacién ‘ A :3:_
Throughoutits 25 years experience within the ornamental rock o oot sk ot siercioe Mot 0 heas 7eem
sector, Cosentino has spread worldwide through its distribution Gasos deparsonal Pow26 94147071 (96.166.698)
. \ - Fusidos, salanos v esimilados L 37 ADE RO £35.604,6855
network, and currently operates in the USA, Latin America, argas socieles . mgoE0n (0801
Europe, Australia and Asia. Nationwide, it has regional officesin %" 8% ds exlotacion . e e
Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao, Tarragona, Levante, Seville, fiituion - N .. e 1H01 464}
. . . ~ P Pérdidas, deternioro v vanecion de provisiones Por Openagiones Mota 13

Guipuzcoa, Vizcaya, Zaragoza, Almeria, La Corufia, Castellon, | cormercees b asEaEE 120348855
- o 9 - 1w0s de Lo € e ol PR { 20
Badajoz, Gerona, Murcia, Valencia, Valladolid, Pontevedra, e mociommisontalon st 0 e rpoiind
g : ; Amdrtizacion del inmovilizado Motss5y6 . (13364085] 113104 393}
Toledo... and distributors in all provinces. igimacion ds msbvencionse d inmovilizad 1o fnanciera y OtT: ol il o Py
Detdricro y resultado por snajenacionas dul inmovilizado Mow28 . 75364 (245 23
Rasuiedos DOT eNGRNACIONSS ¥ OURS e 2483233
Otrgs rasultades L s 113 444]

v

2013 Raw Material Cost to Revenues = 47% vs. CSTE’s 27%;
Both CSTE and Cosentino are of comparable size

Source: Cosentino (here) Source: Registradores de Espana (here) 20


http://www.silestoneusa.com/cosentino-group/about-cosentino/
http://www.homedepot.com/c/SV_HS_Silestone
http://registradores.org/
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* We sourced foreign subsidiary financial statements and cannot understand why gross margins are significantly lower. Note
that Australia is approximately 21% of total company sales

Australia— 2014 Gross Margin 24.7% Singapore—2013 Gross Margin 31.6%

3 Statement of Comprehensive Income
t Australia Pty Limited For the financial year ended 31 December 2013
Caesarstone
ACN 121 819 976
Mote 2013 2012
€ €
O ther Revenue 10 4,306,608 3,588,208
Statement of PIOﬁt or Loss and Costs of sales (2,946,576) (2,375,166)
Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2014 Gross profit 1,358,732 1,213,042
Other operating income 11 59,470 26,062
Selling and marketing expenses (872,200) {544 500)
General and administrative expenss (562,805) {216,426)
" 2013 Other operating expenses (372,424) (377, 743)
20
Notes $ §
{1,747.959) {1,712,607)
2 118,819,201 93,286,315
2 186,980 1,035,455
Revenue (4950,608)  (5,393.755) Loss before tax 12 (388,227) (499,565)
g::;g:‘;mﬁgs of finished goods (84,571,874) (58,082,770) Income tax expense 13 - -
Finished goads purchased (2,542,851) (9-856-913‘
Emplayee benafits @xpense {406,802) (399.282) Loss for the financial year, representing total
Deprecistion and emortisation expenses (332,217) (M:::j] comprehensive income for the financial year (388,227) {499.565)
7T
Finance costs 3 (1,850,110 (2,077
- 332)
Minimum lease payments expense (2,915,586) {2,724,
Showroom and sample expenses 10,968,513 41,910,579
Qther expenses
3,564,619 2.777.567
Profit bafore income tax
——-E""”n’_ﬂew
Income 1ax eXDense 2,688,183 1,504,471
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive Income: The accompanying accounfing policies and explanatory nofes form an integral part of the financial
' __A__E__S_BLE_ 1,604,474 statements.
hensive income for the year
Total comprahensive ineome IO T2 Y22

CAESARSTONE SOUTH EAST ASIA PTE LTD. 10
Source: Available at ASIC Connect (here)

Note: Gross Profit = Revenue — Changes in inventories and finished WP :
purchased goods Source: Singapore registry (here)


https://connectonline.asic.gov.au/RegistrySearch/faces/landing/panelSearch.jspx?_afrLoop=360574604327732&searchType=OrgAndBusNm&searchText=121819976&_afrWindowMode=0&searchTab=search&_adf.ctrl-state=qkehqz7fb_4
https://www.psi.gov.sg/

SRS S1cnificant Margin Lrosion Appears To

e Be Mas ]{Gd b)/ FX B@HC’ﬁf

In the recent quarter, CSTE provided commentary about revenues on a constant currency basis. For example. Its headline boasted,
“Revenue Up 9.9% to a Record $127.5 million, up 20.2% on a Constant Currency Basis”

However the Company does not indicate the precise effect foreign currencies had on gross margins or EBITDA

Our pro forma analysis attempts to adjust CSTE’s gross margins to illustrate what they would look like if there were no change in currency
year-over-year. We make some assumptions about the percentage of Cost of Goods Sold incurred in the Israeli Shekel, where a majo rity of
its manufacturing took place

By removing the FX effects, we estimate that CSTE is facing significant margin erosion in its core business. We will detail why we
believe this is the case in the coming slides

It is worth noting that CSTE recently cut its sales guidance range to $495m to $505m (from $515m to $525m) while holding its 2015 EBITDA
forecast unchanged and cited “slightly lower-than-expected U.S. growth and the further negative impact of foreign exchange rates” as the
reason for the guidance reduction. However, a closer look suggests thatthe FX effect masked underlying margin erosion in itsbusiness

Actual Q2'15 Adjusted for FX
% of COGS Assumed in Shekel
Sales by Region Q214 Q215 50% 75% 100%
Australi $27.4  $27.0 $27.0 $27.0 $27.0 FCEIMEIES el s
ustralia . . . . . .
USA $47.9  $57.1 $57.1 $57.1 $57.1 Approximately 3.7% —5.0%
Israel $9.9 $9.6 $10.7 $10.7 $10.7 lower than reported
Canada $15.4 $19.1 $21.6 $21.6 $21.6 and although
Europe $7.3 $6.8 $6.9 $6.9 $6.9 Caesarstone will
Other $8.1 $8.0 $8.0 $8.0 $8.0 . )
Total Sales $116.0  $127.5 $131.3  $131.3  $131.3 continue to realize a

currency benefit over
Less: Cost of Goods Sold ($67.5)  ($74.9) ($81.9) ($81.5) ($83.7) 2015, we believe that
margins will continue
to face headwinds
going forward

Gross Profits $48.5 $52.6
Pro Forma Gross Margin 41.8% 41.3%

Note: As provided by company SEC correspondence, Australian sales take place in USS and assuch there is no impact of currency
exposure to Australian and USAsales. Currency depreciation assumptions from Q2-14 to Q2-15: Shekel 0.2886t0 0.2583, CS$ 0.9170to

0.8132,EUR1.1372 to 1.1063. This analysis is forillustrative purposes. 22


http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1504379/000117891314000860/filename1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1504379/000117891315002495/exhibit_99-1.htm
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We sourced quotes from dealers for some basic Caesarstone Classico designs (originally introduced in 1987). Since
then, the company has introduced three additional product collections, Concetto, Motivo and Supremo, which are
marketed as specialty high-end product collections. Our basic price quotes came in around $1,600 - $1,700 (pre-tax) for
a basic countertop with sink cut out.

MARBLE. GRANITE & TILE Date: March 26, 2015

To: Ben Axler
Re: Kitchen Counterop

Quote: : : Date:

Axler, Ben 1/30/2015 )

Quote Address: Material: Caesarstone - Oyster 79601 OR Mocha #2370 1-1/4”
INCLUDES:

Std edge profile

undermount sink cut out Piece:

SS 18G sink —Er o QEY

No backsplash 757 x 257 = 13.02s/f

template fab and install.

Removal svcs available for additional $150.00 Total Square Footage: 13 @ $107-00/ sqft. $1,391 00
Color Options: Drawing: (price includes template, fabrication, delivery

Color Edge Total 75' & installation)

Granite Caesarstone 9601 3/8 eased $1,686 000

Oyster @
p5.5" 255"
_ Sink Clltout: $15000
5"

Edge Detail: Eased & Polished

Note:
Caesarstone 1/2 slab - 26x120 6.25 linear ft. @ $12.00/linear ft. $75.00
Unfinished
—©— aeased [ ) Subtotal: $1,616.00
. . o . Tax:  $143.42
Quote is based on measurements provided in submission and subject to change after field ) -
measurements are conducted. Removal of existing countertops or repair of existing cabinets not Total: $l,f 59.42

included.

Note: Tax not included Note: Assuming 14 sqftto make comparable, pre-tax total rises to $1,723

23
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We sourced quotes from dealers of three competing brands and found substantially lower price estimates, upwards of
25% less than Caesarstone’s prices. Prices ranged from $1,287 to $1,427 for the exact same project and dimensions.
What was more perplexing, some dealers indicated to us that Caesarstone had recently raised prices by a couple
percentevenin the face of lower priced entrants.

Pental Quartz Q From MSI

Date: March 26, 2015
To: Ben Axler
Re: Kitchen Counterop

Matertal: Pental Quartz - Santa Fe Tan #BS300 1-1/4”

Piece:
7573 25" = 13.02 5/f

Total Square Footage: 13 @ $80.00/sq.ft. $1,040.00
(price inchudes template, fabrication, delivery

& installation)

Sink Cutout: $150.00

Edge Detail: Eased & Polished
6.25 linear ft. @ §12.00/linear ft. $75.00

Subtotal: $1,265.00
Tax:  §11227
Total: §1,377.27

Note: Assuming 14 sqftto make comparable, pre-tax total rises to $1,345

I

Sent: Fri 1/23/15 5:42 PM

To: - Ben Axter (N NNTHENN

0k, got it. So we are looking at a total of 14 square feet, below you will
find your quoted prices:

Toasted Almond- $1,427.00

-§70.00 per square feet

-$18.00 per square feet for Install and Template
-6195.00 Under mount sink cut-out

Ice White- $1,287.00

-560.00 per square feet

-618.00 per square feet

-$195.00 Under mount sink cut-out

Will you need to purchase a sink and faucet package from us?

Note: Tax not included

24



Warning: Multiple Related Party
Agreements Worth Considering
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CSTE warns as a Risk Factor: “Regulators and other third parties may question whether our agreements with Kibbutz Sdot-Yam are
no less favorable to us than if they had been negotiated with unaffiliated third parties”

Our 3" Party Observation: CSTE would have substantial motivation for striking lower, off-market agreements with the Kibbutz, in
order to inflate its margins and ultimately its stock price. We observe that the Kibbutz has sold its stock through secondary issuances
since coming public twice already, netting it approximately $260m

Land Use CSTE’s headquarters, R&D facilities, as well 2/13/12 20yrs $3.5,53.7,53.9m
Agreement manufacturing facilities, are located on the
grounds at Kibbutz Sdot-Yam

Land purchase During Sept 2012, CSTE sold rights in the Sept 2012 10yrs S1.dm/yr
and Leaseback lands and facilities Bar-Lev to the Kibbutz
for NIS 43.7 million (~¥$10.9m); S1m over its
carrying value.

Manpower Kibbutz agreedto provide CSTE with labor 7/20/11 10yrs $3.8,53.9,53.9m
Agreement services staffed by Kibbutz members, subject to re-approval by audit

candidates for Kibbutz membership and committee, board of directors and

Kibbutz residents general meeting every three years

Services Kibbutz provides CSTE with sewage 2/13/12 8yrs S$2.1m /yr
Agreement infrastructure services, water supply, meals,

laundry, post-delivery and other services
Payments to - - - $10.3, $10.8,512.2m
Kibbutz (ex VAT) 3.5%, 3.0%, 2.7%

% of revenue

Source: 2014 20-F Filing
25



WY [rofits Before Safety? CSTE Has
L Unquantifiable Liability 1o Silicosis Claims

Silicosis is an occupational lung disease that is progressive and sometimes fatal, and is characterized by scarring of the lungs and
damage to the breathing function

CSTE is party to 60 pending (up from 41 ayearago and 14 in 2012) bodily injury lawsuits that have beenfiled against it directly
since 2008 in Israel or that have named it as third-party defendants by fabricators or their employees in Israel, by the injured successors,
by the State of Israel or by others. It has also received ten letters (up from 9 a year ago) threatening to file claims against it on behalf of
certain fabricators and their employees in Israel.

Most of the claims do not specify a total amount of damages sought, as the plaintiff's future damages will be determined at trial;
however, damages totaling approximately $22.3m are specified in 55 of the claims currently pending against us in Israel (excluding the
claim that is seeking class action recognition)

A lawsuit by a single plaintiff and a motion for its class certification were filed against CSTE in April 2014 in the Central District Court in
Israel. Its insurer has notified it that its product liability insurance covers such claim only partially. The amount claimed in the currently
pending class action exceeds its insurance coverage by a material amount

CaesarStone® silicosis epidemic:
Atypical pathological presentation

STNONDND YOV NWY VI DY TN

Cesar Stone Silicosis: A

N.Abdel-rahman,A.Amital,D.Shitrit : e
Y. Raviv,, MR. Kramer new epidemic in Israel

Prof M Kramer
Pulmonary Institute
abin Medical Center T2 5Y AN
Oct 2013 oO»ax TN

Source lIsrael Society of Pulmonology (here) Source Israel Ministry of Health (here) 28


http://www.ipus.org.il/data/lung0112/2-caesarstone.pdf
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OSHA is currently considering lowering the permissible exposure limit to silica dust. Greater regulatory scrutiny of
silicosis comes at a time when CSTE is expanding production to the United States. CSTE could see its cost of
regulatory compliance increase as the regulatory backdrop evolves.

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Search

A to Z Index | En Espaiiol | Contact Us | FAQs | About OSHA

OSHA 0 share Evi. PR ENTI L] Newsletter 51 RSS Feeds  # Was this page helpful?

Occupational Safety & Health Administration ~ We Can Help What's New | offices QSHA

Home  Workers Regulations  Enforcement — Data & Statistics  Training  Publications =~ Newsroom = Small Business = Anti-Retaliation

OSHA Trade News Release

U.S. Department of Labor
0OSHA, Office of Communications

Feb. 18, 2015
Contact: Office of Communications
Phone: 202-693-1999

OSHA and NIOSH issue hazard alert on protecting workers from silica exposure
during countertop manufacture and installation

WASHINGTON — The U.S. Department of Labor's Occupational Safety and Health Administration and the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health today jointly issued a hazard alert
about protecting workers from significant crystalline silica exposure during manufacturing, finishing, and installing natural and manufactured stone countertops.

The hazard alert follows report: workers in Spain and 25 workers in Israel who developed silicosis - an le, progressively disabling and sometimes fatal lung disease - as a result of
exposure to crystalline silicyin their work manufacturing stone countertops. Ten of the workers in Israel required lundNransplants as a result of their condition. OSHA and NIOSH have identified
exposure to silica as a heall zard to workers involved in stone countertop operations in the United States, both infabrication shops and during in-home finishing/installation. The alert jointly issued
by OSHA and NIOSH explains how can be mitigated with simple and effective dust co

Crystalline silica is found in granite, sandstone, quartzite, various other rocks and sand. Workers who inhale very small crystalline silica particles are at risk for silicosis. Symptoms of silicosis can include

shortness of breath, cough and fatigue, and may or may not be obviously attributable to silica. Workers exposed to airborne crystalline silica also are at increased risk for lung cancer, chronic
obstructive pulmonary disease and kidney disease.

The hazard alert* details what can be done at stone countertop fabrication and installation worksites to protect warkers from exposure to silica. This includes monitoring the air to determine silica
exposure levels; using engineering controls and safe work practices to control dust exposure; and providing workers with respiratory protection when needed, training, and information about the
hazards of silica.

For more information on silica hazards and how to prevent them, visit OSHA's Web page on crystalline silica.

Under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, employers are responsible for providing safe and healthful workplaces for their employees. OSHA's role is to ensure these conditions for
America's working men and women by setting and enforcing standards, and providing training, education and assistance. For more information, visit www.osha.gov.

Source OSHA (here) 27


https://www.osha.gov/newsrelease/trade-20150218.html
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Warning: CSTE's Cash Flows Not

e Reconciling With Balance Sheet Changes

accounts accurately reflect the company’s presentation of its operating cash flow

$ in thousands

2011 2012 2013 2014
Reported to Cash Flow Statement
Change in Trade Payables ($0.94) S$5,201 $9,351 $1,811
Change in Trade Receivables ($10,460) ($8,561) ($8,238) ($3,913)
Change in Inventories $4,090 ($3,816) (87,317)  ($22,345)
Change in Accrued Exp and other ($4,533) ($9,922) $5,756 $1,611
Change in Other Receivables and Prepaid Exp. ($2,376) ($3,291) ($7,419) $1,393
Change in Balance Sheet Accounts
Trade Payables $1,945 $6,087 $13,699 $8,806
Trade Receivables ($4,718) ($7,271) ($8,238)  ($12,151)
Inventories ($7,859) ($2,465) (§7,317)  ($29,662)
Accrued Exp and other $9,390  ($13,719) $5,576 $4,884
Other Receivables and Prepaid Exp. ($5,133) ($2,764) ($6,615) ($6,491)
Variance
Trade Payables $1,946 5886 $4,348 $6,995
Trade Receivables S5,742 $1,290 S0 ($8,238)
Inventories ($11,949) $1,351 SO ($7,317)
Accured Expenses and Other Liabilities $13,923 ($3,797) ($180) S3,273
Other Receivables and Prepaid Expenses ($2,757) $527 $804 ($7,884)

Source: SEC filings

» Given our concerns about the integrity of CSTE’s financials, we have also checked to see if changes in its balance sheet

+ Unfortunately, we have found an alarming variance in accounts that grew significantly in 2014

-

Since coming
public in 2012, the
accounts showed
the highest
variance in 2014
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*+ CSTE has an unusual and significant spread between its DSO and DPO. The spread of 30 at year end 2014 was
the widest in the past 4 years. This suggests that CSTE is trying to stretch out its payables as far as it can to generate
temporary cash from operations and may be having trouble collecting from its customers

* Analysis of U.S. Building Products Peers: Suggest a normalized DSO and DPO is around 33 — 35 with minimal
spread between days payables and receivables

* These earnings quality issues are usually an early warning sign of underlying business issues

CSTE’s Alarming Spread Between DSO and DPO Summary of U.S. Peers’

53.0x 84.0x 60.0x
82.0x
52.0x 50.0x
80.0x
51.0x 78.0x 40.0)(
50.0X 76.0x ———
24.0x 30.0x
49.0x 72.0x 20.0x
48.0x 70.0x
68.0x 10.0x
47.0x
66.0x
0.0x
46.0x 64.0x 2012 2013 2014
2011 2012 2013 2014

—Days Sales Outstanding (Left) =—Days Payable Outstanding (Right) Days Sales Outstanding Days Payable Outstanding

1) Peers include: Masonite, American Woodmark, Ply Gem, Q uanex Building Products (N X),
A pogee, Beacon Roofing, Armstrong Worldwide, N orcraft, Masco (MAS), Pool Corp, and Trex.
Foreign companies excluded due to differencein reporting standards of COGS 29
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» CSTE has historically reported blistering 20%+ revenue growth for a building product company, yet has an abnormally low
inventory turnover in the range of 3.5x compared with US peers in the 9— 10x range and are growing at approximately 10%

» Unlike its US peers, CSTE gives enough disclosure to determine its raw material costs. Digging a litter deeper, we calculate
CSTE’s raw material turnover at 8.5x. Cosentino, its closest stone surface peer, reports its raw material turnover to be 5.7x
and is growing revenues approximately 15%

» Just another red flag of potential underlying business issues

Unusually Inventory and Raw Material Turnover Inventory Turns Significantly Below Peers

S in millions
2011 2012 2013 2014 12.0x

Raw Material Cost $77.7 $84.6 $97.2  $123.7 10.0x ‘\
8.0x

Total Cost of Goods Sold $155.4 $169.2 $194.4 $257.8
6.0x

Raw Materials $12.1 S11.6 $13.8 $15.4

Work-in-Progress S0.5 S0.8 $1.0 $0.7 4.0x

Finished Goods $35.4 $38.1 $43.1 $64.0

Total Inventory $48.1 $50.6 $57.9 $80.2 2.0x

Raw Materials Turnover 7.2x 7.1x 7.7x 8.5x 0.0x

) ’ ’ ’ 2011 2012 2013 2014
Total Inventory Turnover 3.5x 3.4x 3.6x 3.7x

=).S. Building Product Peers ~ ===CSTE

Source: Public filings

1) Peersinclude: Masonite, American Woodmark, Ply Gem, Q uanex Building Products, Apogee,

Beacon Roofing, Armstrong Worldwide, Norcraft, Masco, Pool Corp, and Trex. Foreign

companies excluded due to difference in reporting standards of COGS 30
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Kost Forer Gabbay & Tel: +972-4-8654000

Kasierer
- 3o
EY 2 Pal-Yam Blvd. Brosh Bldg. F:fx_ TI72-3-5633439
Haifa 3309502, Israel ey.com

Building a better
working world

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
CAESARSTONE SDOT-YAM LTD.

We have audited the accompanving consolidated balance sheets of Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Ltd. and subsidiaries (the "Companv") as of December 31, 2013

and 2012 and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive mncome, equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the penod ended
December 31, 2013, These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility 1s to express an opimon on these
financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of Caesarstone Australia Pty Limited. a whollv-owned subsidiary, which
statements reflect total assets constituting 13% and 17% of the related consolidated totals as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and total
revenues constituting 25%, 30% and 34% m 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively. of the related consolidated totals. Those statements were audited by other
auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion. msefar as it relates to the amounts included for Caesarstone Australia Pty Limited. is based
solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Umited States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit fo obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not
engaged to perform an audit of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circwmstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reperting. Accordingly. we eXpress no such opimion. An audit also includes examuning, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures m the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits and the report of the other auditor provide a
reasonable basis for our opimion.

In our opiion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditor, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, i all material
respects. the consolidated financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the consolidated results of its operations and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

s/ Kost Forer Gabbav & Kasierer
Haifa. Israel KOST FORER GABBAY & KASIERER
Mav 13, 2014 A Member of Emst & Young Global

Source: CSTE 20-F



SPRUCE POINT

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

PCAOB Release No. 104-2013-134

Inspection of Kost Forer Gabbay & Kasierer
May 23, 2013

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board Page 4

attention. Under PCAOB standards, when audit deficiencies are discovered after the
date of the audit report, a firm must take appropriate action to assess the importance of
the deficiencies to the firm's present ability to support its previously expressed audit
opinions 2 Depending upon the circumstances, compliance with these standards may
require the firm to perform additional audit procedures, or to inform a client of the need
for changes to its financial statements or reporting on internal control, or to take steps to
prevent reliance on previously expressed audit opinions. A firm also should consider
whether there are actions the firm should take to alert ancther auditor that has
expressed an opinion on financial statements that the firm played a role in auditing. A
Board inspection does not typically include review of a firm's actions to address
deficiencies identified in that inspection, but the Board expects that firms are attempting
to take appropriate action, and firms frequently represent that they have taken, are
taking, or will take, action. If, through subsequent inspections or other processes, the
Board determines that the firm failed to take appropriate action, that failure may be
grounds for a Board disciplinary sanction.

Al Review of Audit Engagements

The inspection procedures included a review of aspects of the Firm's auditing of
financial statements of five issuer audit clients and the Firm's audit work on one other
issuer audit engagement in which it played a role but was not the principal auditor. The
scope of this review was determined according to the Board's criteria, and the Firm was
not allowed an opportunity to limit or influence the scope.

PCAOB Release No. 104-2013-134
Inspection of Kost Forer Gabbay & Kasierer

PCAOB |

Public Company Accounting Owversight Board Page 5

persuasive other evidence, even if a firm claims to have performed the procedure.
PCAOB Auditing Standard No. 3, Audit Documentation ("AS No. 3"), provides that, in
various circumstances including PCAOB inspections, a firm that has not adequately
documented that it performed a procedure, obtained ewvidence, or reached an
appropriate conclusion must demonstrate with persuasive other evidence that it did so,
and that oral assertions and explanations alone do not constitute persuasive other
evidence. See AS No. 3, paragraph 9 and Appendix A to AS No. 3, paragraph A28.
For purposes of the inspection, an observation that the Firm did not perform a
procedure, obtain evidence, or reach an appropriate conclusion may be based on the
absence of such documentation and the absence of persuasive other evidence.

The inspection team identified what it considered to be audit deficiencies. The
deficiencies included failures by the Firm to perform, or to perform sufficiently, certain
necessary audit procedures.

In some cases, an inspection team's observation that a firm failed to perform a
procedure may be based on the absence of documentation and the absence of

The deficiencies identified included a deficiency of such significance that it
appeared to the inspection team that, in one audit performed by the Firm, the Firm, at
the time 1t issued its audit report, had not obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to support its opinion on the issuer's financial statements. That deficiency was —

the failure to perform sufficient procedures to test a cash flow hedge.

The deficiencies identified also included deficiencies of such significance that it
appeared to the inspection team that, in the audit in which the Firm played a role but
was not the principal auditor, the Firm had not obtained sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to fulfill the objectives of its role in the audit. Those deficiencies were —

(1) the failure fo perform sufficient procedures to test revenue; and

(2) the failure to perform sufficient procedures to test the existence of
inventory.

¥ See AU 390, Consideration of Omitted Procedures After the Report Date,
and AU 561, Subsequent Discovery of Facts Existing at the Date of the Auditor's Report
(both included among the PCAOB's interim auditing standards, pursuant to PCAOB
Rule 3200T), and PCAOB Auditing Standard No. 5, An Audit of Internal Control Qver
Financial Reporting That Is Integrated with An Audit of Financial Statements ("AS No.
5", 198,

Source: Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (here)

B. Review of Quality Control System

In addition to evaluating the quality of the audit work performed, the inspection
included review of certain of the Firm's practices, policies, and procedures related to
audit quality. This review addressed practices, policies, and procedures concering
audit performance and the following eight functional areas (1) tone at the top; (2)
practices for partner evaluation, compensation, admission, assignment of
responsibilities, and disciplinary actions; (3) independence implications of non-audit
services; business ventures, alliances, and arrangements; personal financial interests;
and commissions and contingent fees; (4) practices for client acceptance and retention;
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PCAOB Release No. 104-2010-008
Inspection of Kost Forer

Gabbay & Kasierer

January 21, 2010

Page 3

PCAOB

Public Company Accounting Oversight Beard

Board inspections are designed to identify and address weaknesses and
deficiencies related to how a firm conducts audits.2 To achieve that goal, Board
inspections include reviews of certain aspects of selected audits performed by the firm
and reviews of other matters related to the firm's quality control system.

In the course of reviewing aspects of selected audits, an inspection may identify
ways in which a particular audit is deficient, including failures by the firm to identify, or to
address appropriately, respects in which an issuer's financial statements do not present
faily the financial position, results of operations, or cash flows of the issuer in
conformity with GAAP ' It is not the purpose of an inspection, however, to review all of
a firm's audits or to identify every respect in which a reviewed audit is deficient.
Accordingly, a Board inspection report should not be understood to provide any
assurance that the firm's audits, or its i1ssuer clients' financial statements, are free of any
deficiencies not specifically described in an inspection report.

A Review of Audit Engagements

The inspection procedures included a review of aspects of the Firm's auditing of
financial statements of eight issuers. The scope of this review was determined
according to the Board's criteria, and the Firm was not allowed an opportunity to imit or
I scane

PCAOB Release No. 104-2010-008
Inspection of Kost Forer

Gabbay & Kasierer

January 21, 2010

Page 4

PCAOB

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

significance that it appeared to the inspection team that the Firm did not obtain sufficient
competent evidential matter to support its opinion on the issuer's financial statements 2
Those deficiencies were —

(1)  the failure to perform sufficient audit procedures fo test the existence of
accounts receivable;

(2)  the failure, in two audits, to perform sufficient audit procedures with
respect to revenue from arrangements with multiple deliverables; and

(3)  the failure to perform sufficient audit procedures to assess the allowance
for doubtful accounts

The inspection team identified what it considered to be audit deficiencies 2 The
deficiencies identified in two of the audits reviewed included deficiencies of such

& This focus necessanly carmes through to reports on inspections and,

accordingly, Board inspection reports are not intended to serve as balanced report
cards or overall rating toals.

z When it comes to the Board's attention that an issuer's financial
statements appear not to present fairly, in a material respect, the financial position,
results of operations or cash flows of the issuer in conformity with GAAP, the Board's
practice i1s to report that information to the SEC, which has jurisdiction to determine
proper accounting in issuers’ financial statements.

B PCAOB standards require a firm to take appropriate actions to assess the
importance of audit deficiencies identified after the date of the audit report to the firm's
present ability to support its previously expressed opinions. See AU 390, Consideration
of Omitted Procedures after the Report Date, and AU 561, Subsequent Discovery of
Facts Existing at the Date of the Auditor's Report (both included among the PCAOB's

Source: Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (here)

B. Review of Quality Control System

In addition to evaluating the quality of the audit work performed on specific
audits, the inspection included review of certain of the Firm's practices, policies and
procedures related to audit quality. This review addressed practices, policies and
procedures conceming audit performance and the following eight functional areas (1)
tone at the top; (2) practices for partner evaluation, compensation, admission,
assignment of responsibiliies, and disciplinary actions; (3) independence implications of
non-audit services; business ventures, alliances, and arrangements; personal financial
interests; and commissions and contingent fees; (4) practices for client acceptance and
retention; (5) practices for consultations on accounting, auditing, and SEC matters; (6)

interim auditing standards, pursuant to PCAOB Rule 3200T). Failure to comply with
these PCAOB standards could be a basis for Board disciplinary sanctions.

o In some cases, an inspection team's observation that a firm failed to
perform a procedure may be based on the absence of documentation and the absence
of persuasive other evidence, even If a firm claims to have performed the procedure.
PCAOB Auditing Standard No. 3, Audit Documentation ("AS No_ 37), provides that, in
various circumstances including PCAOB inspections, a firm that has not adeguately
documented that it performed a procedure, obtained evidence, or reached an
appropriate conclusion must demonstrate with persuasive other evidence that it did so,
and that oral assertions and explanations alone do not constitute persuasive other
evidence. See AS No. 3, paragraph 9; Appendix A to AS No. 3, paragraph A28. For
purposes of the inspection, an observation that the Firm did not perform a procedure,
obtain evidence, or reach an appropriate conclusion may be based on the absence of
such documentation and the absence of persuasive other evidence.
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LSRN [‘ollow the Money: Insiders Have Been
SN Sc//ing and Extracting Cash Out

CSTE'’s sole pre-IPO investor, Tene Investment Funds, quickly exited at the first secondary offering in 2013

Recently in May 2014, CSTE’s major shareholder, Kibbutz Sdot Yam, started to liquidate its holdings and offered 6.4m
shares. The Kibbutz has also extracted money through year-end special dividends. In total, the Kibbutz has extracted
approximately $300 million from Caesarstone

Secondary share offerings at $11, $23, and $45.50 significantly below current levels

shares and dollars in millions

Pre % Post % 2013 % 2014 %
IPO Owned IPO Owned Offering Owned Offering Owned
Public Shareholders 0.0 0.0% 7.7 22.3% 16.6 48.3% 23.7 67.4%
Kibbutz Sdot Yam 18.7 70.1% 18.7 54.5% 17.8 51.7% 11.4 32.6%
Tene Inv Funds 8.0 29.9% 8.0 23.3% 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0%
Shares Outstanding 26.7 100.0% 34.4 100.0% 34.4 100.0% 35.1 100.0%
Public Offer Price $11.00 $23.25 $45.50
Net Proceeds to Caesarstone $76.8 -- --
Net Proceeds to Kibutz Sdot Yam - $21.0 $240.2
Total Stock Sales $261.2
Total Dividends (1)_ _ __ $3438
JotalCashOut $296.0 |

(1) A $17.9m special dividend was paid from IPO proceeds along with a $S0.58/sh and $0.57/sh in 2013 and 2014

Source: SEC filings and public announcements
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+ CSTE’s May 2015 Investor Presentation uses the word “Premium” a total of seven times. The importance is highlighted by
the fact that it is prominently used on the first two key slides in the presentation

Global Leader in the Attractive Quartz Surface Market

Company Overview
+ 27 years of leadership

+ Strong premium brand
'-ﬂmuuamm! volume)

* Distribution network across over 50
countries

+ Diversified revenue with approximately
55% of revenue from North America

Strong Performance Through the Cycle (Smm)

e Adjusted EBITDA e Adjusted Met Income Revenue

$150.0
1250
100.0

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Quartz Market Opportunity:
+ 2014 market penetration: 10% by sales
* Fastest growing surfaces category ('99 -
'14)
« Grew at 15.7% CAGR
+ From 2% penetration in 1999
+ Capturing high % market share in key
markets

Source: Freedonia February 2015

Quartz Is the Fastest Growing Category in a
$81bn Market

Quartz is the
fastest
growing

Development Growth Maturity Dwindling

First Few Slides From May 2015 Investor Presentation

Key Investment Highlights F #1 Reason to Invest!
/

* Premium brand with superior customer value proposition

(O caesarstone’

* Global market leader in high growth quartz surfaces market

+ Strong, diversified global distribution platform

* World-class marketing, R&D and manufacturing capabilities
* Proven track record of growth and product innovation

* Experienced management team

+ Attractive financial profile

(O caesarstone'

Source: Caesarstone Investor Presentation (here)
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Caesarstone often touts its “World Class Manufacturing and R&D Capabilities” to “maintain innovative and leading
technologies and top quality designs, develop new and innovative products according to its marketing department’s roadmap”
In our opinion, quartz countertops have become largely commoditized and consumers are increasingly relying on style
preference and price vs. brand name
We observe that the company has been spending a lower percentage of revenues on R&D and shrinking its R&D headcount
Could a shrinking R&D budget jeopardize CSTE’s ability to maintain a premium positioning in the market

Declining R&D Margin R&D Department’s Shrinking Headcount

$ in millions
$4.0 1.4%
$3.5 1.2%
$3.0 1 0%
$2.5
0.8%
S2.0
a1 0.6%
.5
$1.0 0.4%
$0.5 0.2%
$S0.0 0.0%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

mmm Annual R+D Expense - R+D Expense as % of Revenues

Source CSTE’s 20-F SEC filings

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

46 56 87 l 106 117

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

B Manufacturing M R&D M Sales/Marketing & Management and Admin
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CSTE’s U.S. Plant Expansion, Over

Budget and Too Late 1o the Party?

Calgary QUEBEC
Winnipeg
Vancguver ol
2 & HanStone
S NORTH London, ON
WASHINGTON :
MONTANA Cambria ESOTA - T
Le Sueur, MN X g Al -
\\Doub/edcapac/'ty \&FSCONSH\J \ ; V—T NOVA SCOTIA
) OREGON o in 2012 MICHIGAN) [oronte. g 2
Element Quartz (China) WYOM Chicago " NEW YORK o -
Quartzmaster (Russia) e\ 1IOWA 7 " ety DupontZodiaq
\icosH Viet ILLINOIS OHIO () Thetford Mines,
ICO_S one ( 1€ nam) NEVADA ; United States INDIANA vip NI Quebec
Radianz by Samsung UTAH e it WEST DE “Multi million
Quintessenza (China) ¢4 ronrnia Y dollar investment
- in 2008”
Pef?tal TR Al Cosentino 1oMS TENNESSEEIC AROLINA
Q from MSI ) _ LosAngeles 570 (Non-Manufacturing) A * ol
One Quartz by Daltile (India) =, o Sugar Land, TX flas T BMISS 1SS R CA;LL
Belenco (Turkey) San Diego — TEXRS GEORG) Caesarstone
_San Anton LOUISIANA Richmond HI", GA
G&,, S L ¥ion $115m greenfield
%, LG Viatera |4 plant
% Monterrey Adairsville, GA
2 (] Gy
% v Mexico
Mexico Hav;;ana

ONTARIO

Source: Dupont Announces Growth Investment for Zodiaq (here)
Cambria Doubles Production Capacity at Le Sueur (here)
Caesarstone selects Richmond Hill, GA and expects costs of $100m (here)

Cosentino (Spain)
Compac (Spain)
Levantina (Spain)
St. Margherita (Italy)
Stone Italiana (Italy)
Seieffe OKITE (Italy)
Technistone (Czech)
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CSTE Deal With IKEA® Sends

Inconsistent Premium Brand Message

Caesarstone Name Not Highlighted
in a Recent Catalogue

TIREEE

Source: IKEA product catalogue

Caesarstone Name Not

Highlighted
in an IKEA Store

In May 2013, CSTE announced its intention to serve as IKEA US’s
exclusive non-laminate countertop vendor. In October 2014,
Caesarstone Canada entered into a similar agreement with IKEA
Canada

Caesarstone USA, sources, fabricate and install the countertop
products, primarily fromits quartz surfaces, all of which are not

marketed under its brand. Furthermore, it is responsible thereunder for

fabricating and installing countertops for end customers.

The agreements with IKEA and IKEA Canada will terminate at the end

of 2015 and the beginning of 2017, respectively, unless terminated
earlier in accordance with their terms. There is no assurance that
these agreements will be renewed.

Our Take On This Deal

Highly inconsistent with CSTE’s “premium” branding strategy
to sell through a low cost retailer such as IKEA

CSTE gets limited/no brand exposure with this deal. Our visits
to IKEA revealed no in-store exposure that CSTE'’s brands
were being sold; similar to catalogue exposure (left)

Sales through IKEA lower CSTE’s gross margins because
CSTE has to bear the cost of fabrication and installation

We believe the IKEA deal may support our case that CSTE’s
gross margins are too high, and the deal could be used to
explain away CSTE’s margin deterioration

Source: IKEA Announcement (here); CSTE 2014 20-F filing
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Cosentino’s New Super Premium Countertop Has Recently Just Hit The Market and Risks Marginalizing
Other Brands Such As Caesarstone

Home Depot Cosentino Investing Heavily in
Shopper Comparison Now Lists Dekton Super Premium Product

October 4, 2013: Cosentino, the world leader in quartz, natural
stone, and recycled surfaces announced the launch of Dekton by
Cosentino, a new ultra-compact surface with advanced technical
properties for both interior and exterior design. Dekton is the most
significant new product launch for Cosentino in over a decade,
totaling more than 22,000 hours of research and development.
Cosentino has invested $172 million into the new product,
including the construction of a new state-of-the-art factory at the
company’s manufacturing headquarters in Spain.

Source: Cosentino Announcement (here)

Google Trends - Dekton

Dekton

Search term

Quartz soon to no
bnger be premium? Jul 2012 Jan 2013 Jul 2013 Jan 2014 Jul 2014 J
Google Trends Dekton (here) 41
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Questionable Market Share Claims
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Caesarstone’s growth story is highly dependent on selling investors on its U.S. growth opportunity. Since coming
public in 2012, Caesarstone has regularly presented market share data complied by Freedonia Research to investors.
In the table below, we’ve listed its market share estimates for key markets. Accordingly, the U.S. is the only market it

has reported consistent market share gains, while gains in other countries are flat or declining.

Consistent
Australia 59% 57% 55% Market Share
Declines

Consistent
United States 14% 16% 19% Market Share
Gains

Market Share
Canada 29% 36% 36% Stagnation
2012 -2014

Market Share Sources from Freedonia:
2010: Prospectus, p. 5

2012: Prospectus, p. S-4

2014: 20-F p. 30
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Investors should be cautioned that Caesarstone’s research citations on market share and growth were in fact
developed on its behalf by Freedonia. In other words, the company paid for the research and, therefore, it should not
be considered as truly independent and unbiased.

=£X-15.3 17 exhibit 15-3.htm EXHIBIT 15.3

Exhibit 15.3
CONSENT OF FREEDONIA CUSTOM RESEARCH, INC,

We hereby consent to the references to Freedonia Custom Research, Inc. and to our global residential and commercial
countertops report, dated February 19, 2015 (the “Report™) Iprepared on behall of Caesarstone Sdot-yam Ltdl(the
“Company”), including the use of information contained within our Report in the Company's Annual Report on Form 20-F
(as may be amended) to be filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission for the year ended December 31, 2014
(the “Annual Report™) and to the incorporation by reference of such information from the Company's Annual Report in the

registration statement on Form S-8 No. 333-180313, and the registration statement on Form F-3ASR (File No. 333-
196335). We also hereby consent to the filing of this letter as an exhibit to the Annual Report.

Disclaimer FREEDONIA CUSTOM

RESEARCH, INC.
“Unless otherwise noted in this annual report, Freedonia Custom Research, Inc.

(“Freedonia”) is the source for third-party industry data and forecasts. The By: /s/ Freedonia Custom
Freedonia Report, dated February 19, 2015, represents data, research opinion or Research, Inc.
viewpoints developed independently on our behalf and does not constitute a Andrew Fauver
specific guide to action. In preparing the report, Freedonia used various sources, President

including publically available third party financial statements; government

statistical reports; press releases; industry magazines; and interviews with March 9, 2015

manufacturers of related products (including us), manufacturers of
competitive products, distributors of related products, and government and trade
associations. Growth rates in the Freedonia Report are based on many variables,
such as currency exchange rates, raw material costs and pricing of competitive
products, and such variables are subject to wide fluctuations over time.”

Source: SEC filings and Exhibit15.3 (here)
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CSTE Has
Historically Been
Entirely
Dependent on
Shipments From
Israel Into the U.S.
Proprietary
Shipping Data
Shows its U.S.
Imports Have
Been Range
Bound Since
Late 2013

Total U.S. Imports
of Quartz Slabs
(Al Countries)

Have Been
Steadily Rising.

Furthermore, U.S.

Based Quartz
Countertop
Manufacturers
Have Also Been
Expanding
Production

TEUs by Month of agglomerated quartz slabs
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Source: Panjiva.com
Note: TEU = Twenty Foot Equivalent, a measure of cargo capacity 45
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Monthly U.S. Imports of Quartz Slabs from China
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Top Exporters to the US of Quartz Slabs

Country Shipments

Israel 5,114
China 4,057
India 1,012
Spain 595

Turkey 450
Italy 449
Portugal 316

Hong Kong 294
Singapore 263
South Korea 224

Source: Panjiva.com 8
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Caesarstone
Search term

Range Bound
Since 2012

Google Trends
Data Suggests
Early Interest
Diminished,
Static Search
Results For
Caesarstone
Since 2012

v

2005 2007 2009 201 2013 2015

Source: Google Trends

Region | City
Google Trends Australia 100
Data Shows o8
Amongthe South Africa 44 wmm
Lowest Search Canada S
Interest From
the U.S. New Zealand 18
Be[i)r?;%ltseTItE’S ' United States 16
Largest Sales | 4 “ ” Singapore 13
Market . -
United Kingdom 3
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Wall Streetis bought into the Caesarstone story with nearly everyanalyst having a Buy or Outperform rating.
Analysts are still projecting ~38% upside from the current share price.

L

Barclays

Credit Suisse

J.P. Morgan

Stifel Nicolaus

UBS

Source: Bloomberg

Equal weight

Outperform

Buy

Buy

Buy

Average Price
% Implied Upside

$62

S68

$65

S78

$67
38%

m Hold m Buy
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“Premium brand with superior customer value proposition”

“Well positioned to benefit from housing recovery as
repair and remodeling spending continues”

“World class R&D and manufacturing capabilities,
capable of product innovations”

“Ability to raise prices to offset FX pressures and
other short-term margin issues”

“Quartz countertops currently have just 8% of the global
countertop market, but we expect significant market
share gains as the surface becomes better known
among consumers.”

“‘Margins have been and will continue to be buffeted by
currency headwinds and the U.S. Plant expansion
scheduled for 2015, but excluding these factors, margins
are growing”

“CSTE remains the same story today as it was when the
company IPO‘ed in March 2012.”

5 5 39399

Analyst Views Are Too Rosy And Omit
Key Issues We Uncovered

Difficult to define what is a “premium” quartz countertop,
customer decisions come down mostly to style preference.
Cosentino has introduced a Dekton, a super premium offering

No exposure to multi family housing. DIY remodeling retailers
Lowes and Home Depot sell Silestone, LG Viatera and other
brands, not CSTE’s products

R&D margin has been declining. Majority of quartz countertop
manufacturers all use the same Breton equipment. CSTE has
introduced only a few new collections in the past few yrs

Competitors already up to 25% lower in price. Our checks
indicate CSTE has raised prices by low single digits, with
some dealers telling us “they dont understand why”

CSTE cites a paid-for research firm to source its market
research figures. Import shipping data suggests US market
share gains may not be growing

CSTE’s quartz supply contract from our SEC FOIA request
indicates that a sharp rise in quartz is a significant
headwind. The plant expansion is over-budget and comes
at a time when the market is getting more competitive.
CSTE'’s lkea deal appears brand and margin dilutive and
provides a nice cover for bigger margin issues

Simply not true. The quartz countertop market has become
more competitive and consumer have more lower priced
options and greater style varieties to choose from 50
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Sales and Margins To Remain Challenged,
First Signs of a Cracked Growth Story

CSTE’s sales growth rate has declined markedly and we
believe it will continue to decline:

2012-2013: sales growth: 20%
2013-2014: sales growth: 25%
2015E: sales growth (per guidance): 12%

CSTE’s Q2’15 sales guidance reduction from
$515-$525m to $495-$505m is the canary in the coal mine
signaling further disappointments

Disappointment comes despite the added lkea distribution
deals from 2013 and access to the DIY market

2016E (consensus estimate) of 18% sales growth is wildly
optimistic considering that:

The Chinese Yuan devaluation just made Chinese
imports even cheaper

CSTE is not levered to the multifamily housing which
is a big driver of the U.S. housing cycle

Import data of CSTE’s slabs has been stagnant

New “super premium” category led by Dekton is
being created and being marketed through the DIY
channels like Home Depot

Questions about product quality and customer
complaints remain

Despite cutting its sales guidance, CSTE maintained its EBITDA
range of $123 — 129m (25.2% margin at the midpoint)

Maintaining its EBITDA margin seems remarkable in light of the
following:

In its SEC filing, CSTE indicated it expected quartz prices to go
up in 2015 by a similar amount from 2014. Based on our public
access of its key quartz supply agreement, this would imply
another 20% increase in 2015. (CSTE has not indicated it has
long-term supply agreements for its new U.S. facility)

There is rampant evidence of increased price competition in the
quartz countertop market from new entrants at price points of
25% less. Dealer quotes support our claim of pricing pressures

R&D expense and margins are already razor thin. Any further
cuts to R&D could sacrifice further product innovation and
future competitiveness

On the Q2’15 call CSTE explains it will get an EBITDA benefit by
lowering U.S. plant start up expense from $11m to just $1.5m as a
result of “less pressure to ramp up.” We interpret this to mean they
see weak customer demand

As illustrated, if margins are evaluated on a constant currency basis,
CSTE margins could be up to 7% less

CSTE’s Sales and Marketing margins have fallen sharply. If they
don’t spend more on marketing, sales growth will decline, and if they
do market more, EBITDA margins will be impacted lower

Open guestion remains about the degree of benefit from the
related-party deals with the Kibbutz 51
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Caesarstone trades at a substantial premium to the U.S. building products peers such as Masco (various products),
Armstrong (floors/ceilings), Pool Corp (pools), Masonite (doors), Plygem (windows), Apogee (architectural glass), Quanex

Building Products (engineered materials) and American Woodmark (cabinets)

(S in millions, except per share figures)

Premium Valuation Not Justified For
A Commodity Product

Stock % of LTM Enterprise Value
Price 52-wk Ent. Gross EBITDA FCF P/E EBITDA Sales
Name Ticker 8/17/2015 High Value Margin Margin Margin 2015E 2016E 2015E 2016E 2015E 2016E
Masco MAS $27.62 97%  S11,653 27.9% 11.8% 5.5% 24.0x 19.2x 11.4x 10.2x 1.6x 1.5x
Armstrong Worldwide AWI $59.57 99% S4,147 23.7% 16.1% 6.2% 26.1x 21.7x 11.2x  9.8x 1.7x  1.6x
Pool Corp POOL $72.01 99% $3,575 28.1% 9.5% 4.1% 25.9x 22.4x 15.8x 14.0x 1.5x 1.4x
Masonite DOOR $66.29 92% $2,327 16.4% 9.3% 2.4% 53.5x 25.4x 12.6x  9.5x 1.2x  1.1x
Plygem PGEM $14.62 99% $2,009 20.7% 8.3% -0.5% 37.5x 12.6x 11.7x 8.7x 1.0x  0.9x
Apogee Enterprises APOG $54.57 89% $1,598 23.1% 11.3% 6.3% 25.8x 19.6x 13.0x 10.0x 1.5x  1.4x
Quanex Building Products NX $19.69 90% $601 22.0% 8.1% -2.2% 67.5x 35.5x 9.6x  8.1x 1.0x 0.9x
American Woodmark AMWD $66.01 97% $896 18.5% 8.4% 5.2% 27.1x NA 11.7x  NA 1.0x NA
Max 1 28.1% 16.1% : 6.3% 67.5x 35.5x  15.8x 14.0x 1.7x  1.6x
Average | | 22.5% 10.3% 1 3.4% 35.9x 22.3x  12.1x 10.1x 1.3x  1.3x
Min | 164%  81% | -2.2%  24.0x_12.6x__ 9.6x  81x _ 10x 0.9«
Caeserstone CSTE $48.53 67% $1,711 42.5% 26.1% -4.6% 20.2x 15.8x 13.4x 10.6x 3.4x 2.9x

Source: Company financials, Wall St. estimates.

Vastly Superior
Margins Too Good
To Be True?

52
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Enterprise Value/2015E Revenues Enterprise Value/2015E EBITDA
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Analysts have pinned Caesarstone’s entire eamings growth story on 2016 in the hopes that its U.S. Facility expansion will en able
massive earnings growth. However, we believe the expansion is too little too late as many new cheaper imports have come to the
North American market. Furthermore, the Company has yet to address its quartz supply issues and as of its May 6 conference call,
stated that it is still looking for quartz sources in the United States. In the mean time, we believe CSTE will have to continue sourcing
qguartz from Turkey. Its EBITDA margins dwarf any public company in the building product sector.

2016E Sales Growth LTMEBITDA Margins

18.0%
16.0%
14.0%
12.0%
10.0%
8.0%
6.0%
4.0%
2.0%
0.0%

Average ‘ |

WI  MAS NX POOL PGEM DOOR AMWD APOG CSTE

Source: Wall St. Research

Q1 2015 Earnings Transcript (here)

30.0%
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We believe CSTE'’s 26% EBITDA margins appear to be overstated due to: 1) Underutilization of quartzin its product as suggeste d by our
independent lab test and 2) Related party transactions that could enable below market operating expenses 3) FXissues masking core
margin weakness. A peer analysis of foreign stone and countertop producers along with a broad set of U.S. building product peers suggest
anormalized 10— 20% EBITDA margin range. If we applied this range to CSTE’s 2015E Sales of $500m, normalized EBITDA would be
$50m - $100m. Applying a below market multiple of 8 — 10x EBITDA implies a share price between $11 and $29.

CSTE Should Trade At A Discount Peers Suggest 10- 20% EBITDA Margin Range

(Sin millions, except per share figures)

25.0%

2015E EV/EBITDA Multiple Range Cou-‘:‘t;r:teoin:eers Pl::é :;il:ei:fs

8.0x -- 10.0x 20.0%
EBITDA Margin Range 10% -- 20%
2015E Sales $500.0 -- $500.0 15.0%
Estimated EBITDA $50.0 - $100.0

10.0% Peer Avg. Peer Avg.
Implied Enterprise Value $400.0 - $1,000.0
Less: Debt (520.0) - (520.0) 5.0%
Plus: Cash $37.6 - $37.6
Equity Vaue $417.6 - $1,017.6 0.0% . o o . ¢ e e . .
Shares ofs 35.4 - 35.4 & & & & o S °&o°‘ & &
Price Target $11.79 - $28.72 Y S s <
% Downside -76% -- -43% v@é\

Source: Wall St. Research, Company filings, Spruce Point Estimates.
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TGA Results

Thermogravimatric analysis was selected as an appropriate means to determine the mass percentage of
organic binder matrix used in cementing aggregate Quartz particles together to form the supplied
countertop material samples. This was based upon the commonly accepted fact that the majority of
organic materials burn and decompose when heated in air at atmospheric pressure to temperatures of
600°C, and completely evolved by 1000°C. For comparative purposes it is typical to compare values at
600°C. There are no known organic materials that will not burn in air at these temperatures. Where as
the inorganic natural quartz material is primarily inert in air at these temperatures. This makes for very
effective analysis. Tablel summarizes the results of the TGA analysis. TGA analysis is accomplished
through the utilization of an extremely accurate apparatus that consists of a specially designed analytical
balance suspended within a ceramic heating element furnace, along with computer controlled software
that allows data collection and analysis of results.

Wt. % Loss @ 600°C
Sample Description
Run 1 Run2 Average STDEV

Hanstone Quartz Fusion-MV623 9.56 9.91 9.74 0.25
Quartz Master QM5022 Maori Island 8.56 9.26 8.91 0.49
Premium Natural Quartz M51Boletus 10.28 10.39 10.34 0.07
Silestone 8.44 6.79 7.62 1.17
Viatera 8.44 6.80 7.62 1.16
Caesarstone Calcutta Nuvo 5131 11.31 11.30 11.31 0.004
Element Quartz EQS118 Toasted 7.57 6.55 7.06 0.72
Almond

Caesarstone 4120 Raven 9.48 11.54 10.51 1.45
Element Quartz EQS101 Fantasy 13.01 13.15 13.08 0.10
Cambria Summerhill Coastal Collection 9.76 9.11 9.43 0.45

Table 1 TGA Analysis of Countertop Materials




From the analysis of the data presented in Table 1 two conclusions can be drawn. Firstly, thereis a
statistically significant difference in the Wt. % loss during heating between the various subjects due to
the thermal evolution of the binder materials. With the maximum loss being reported for Element
Quartz EQS101 of 13.08 Wt. % loss and a minimum Wt. % loss of 7.06 for the Element Quartz EQS118
Toasted Almond sample. Secondly, there is a statistically significant difference in the standard deviation
of the test samples with a range of values from 0.07 to 1.45. This makes the data only slightly more
difficult to interpret. Itis thought that this range of STDEV is a result of the relatively small size of the
TGA sample with respect to the countertop block and more importantly the particle size distribution
within the individual samples. It is as well understood principle that the amount of polymeric resin
bonding material used to cement aggregate particles together is related on an exponential function to
the particle size and particle size distribution of a composite matrix. More simply stated, very small
particles have a very high surface area and naturally will require more polymer resin to completely cover
the surface. Concurrently a large range of particle size, i.e. small and large will effect the grinding and
sampling for TGA analysis. That being said one must take the large variability on some samples into
consideration when drawing conclusions. This could be rectified with additional samples, and more
extensive evaluation.

Ultimately, it is our expert opinion that there is statistically different values between the average binder
content in these samples. It is outside the realm of our expertise to understand how the amount of
resin binder improves the overall quality of a Quartz synthetic countertop. However, one can speculate
that the true engineered quality component of the countertop structure is likely the resin material and
the more that is used the more the overall properties can be tailored to achieve a final result beyond
aesthetic qualities.

Figure 1a and b presents the graphical results of the TGA Analysis for Runl and Run2, respectively. As
can be seen the samples all achieve a baseline Wt. % Loss at about 500°C meaning the majority of all the
organic content has been completely evolved, hence comparison of the values at 600°C to add an
additional level of confidence. One notable event occurs for the Cambria sample in Run 1 at about
750°C, this is likely some form of phase transformation present in one of the inorganic Quartz materials,
sometimes known as calcination when a carbonate group is evolved from an inorganic mineral. It is not
present in Run 2 and irrelevant for this analysis.
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X-Ray Diffraction analysis

Figure 2 below presents the XRD spectra for Viatera. The spectra aligns well with the ICSD International
Crystalline Solids Database for Silica, SiO,. More commonly known as quartz, when obtained from
naturally occurring sources. In Figure 2, the large window represents the 2theta vs. intensity spectra for
the Viatera sample with a smaller window representing the peak positions below for the Quartz
standard. The precise alignment of the peak positions in both windows indicate a compositional match.

Figure 2 XRD of Viatera vs. Quartz- SiO2 standard, from ICSD
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In Figure 3 the remaining samples are overlaid upon each other for comparison to determine similarity
in chemical composition. It can be seen there is little difference between the samples. This is evidenced
by the similarity between the position and intensity ratio of the overlays. Compositional differences are
apparent but are minor and a result of what is typically realized from various mining locations and raw
material sources. It is unlikely that the minor compositional differences have a significant impact on the
physical or chemical properties of the finished countertop. However the inclusion and distribution of
various quantities of fine grains and aggregates are used to produce aesthetic effects like color and
appearance. It is valuable to note that the primary peak for Quartz at 2theta = 27° is present in all
samples giving the definitive compositional identification.

Figure 4 a through | are the remaining counter top samples compared against the Quartz ICSD standard.
Obvious differences in the relative intensity (left axis) are due to x-ray beam samples interactions and
are not indicative of compositional differences. As can be seen for each spectra the position of the
peaks are consistent with the Quartz ICSD standard.
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Figure 3 XRD Spectra Overlay of all 11 Countertop Materials
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Figure 4d Element Quartz
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Density Analysis

The 10 countertop materials were evaluated for their density using the Archimedes principle of water
displacement. The values were measured to 3 significant digits and found to be highly repeatable.
Table 2 below summarizes the findings of this evaluation.

Sample Description Density (gm/cc)
Hanstone Quartz Fusion-MV623 2.387
Quartz Master QM5022 Maori Island 2.404
Premium Natural Quartz M51Boletus 2.367
Silestone 2.437
Viatera 2.441
Calcutta Nuvo 5131 2.321
Element Quartz EQS118 Toasted AlImond 2.451
Caesarstone 4120 Raven 2.335
Element Quartz EQS101 Fantasy 2.140
Cambria Summerhill Coastal Collection 2.141

Table 2 Density (gm/cc) of Countertop Materials




Vickers Hardness Measurements

Vickers hardness is well suited for the evaluation of brittle ceramic (Quartz) materials due to the nature
of the diamond indenter tip. This diamond tip shown at the left is precisely loaded with a known force
and driven into the sample surface causing permanent deformation, also shown. This permanent
deformation is then measured precisely at the micrometer level using a high power microscope and
commercially available software. From the size of the indent and the force applied it is a simple
calculation to derive the Vickers Indentation hardness (Hv). Prior to testing the system is calibrated

using a hardness standard.

The pyramidal diamond indenter of &2
a Vickers hardness tester.

An indentation left in case-hardened &7
steel after a Vickers hardness test. The
difference in length of both diagonals
and the illumination gradient, are both
classic indications of an out-of-level
sample. This is not a good indentation.

The measured values of Vickers Hardness (HV) are given in Table 3
for each of the countertop material samples. As a point of
comparison pure fused SiO2, silca, commercial quartz have Hv
values of about 1000 and pure diamond the hardest substance
known is about 10000. It is not surprising and as expected that the
hardness of these resin bonded quartz composites reflect the
weaker of the matrix, namely the resin. During the application of
the force to the countertop composite it was decided that an area
representative of the overall composite structure would be
sampled. More specifically the hardness was not measured
directly upon a large aggregate of quartz for the comparison of
these materials. The diamond indenter was applied to an area
with approximate equal fractions of both materials. As far as
materials in general are concerned, the countertop materials are
very rigid and stiff but not extremely hard which is likely beneficial
to the home owner, exhibiting forgiveness when handling glass
and other impact sensitive housewares.

Sample Description Vickers Hardness (Hv)
Hanstone Quartz Fusion-MV623 142
Quartz Master QM5022 Maori Island 80
Premium Natural Quartz M51Boletus 100-200
Silestone 124
Viatera 87
Calcutta Nuvo 5131 82
Element Quartz EQS118 Toasted Almond 127
Caesarstone 4120 Raven 96
Element Quartz EQS101 Fantasy 61.5
Cambria Summerhill Coastal Collection 86

Table 3 Vickers Hardness (Hv) of Countertop Materials




Conclusions

From the comparison of the analytical data one can draw some general conclusions that are supported
by well established Material Science and Engineering Principles. When a soft (resin) and hard (Quartz)
material are combined in a composite structure the engineered structure has properties that result from
the combination of the material properties.

It is apparent from the data, although not completely linear that as the binder content increases the
density is reduced, due to an increase in the mass of the lower density phase, namely the resin. This
also results in a reduction in the overall Vickers hardness.

For example the Element Quartz EQS101 Fantasy has the highest resin content, (13.08%) and the lowest
density (2.140 gm/cc), and lowest measured hardness (Hv 61.5).

Additionally, the Element Quartz EQS118 Toasted Almond has the lowest resin content (7.06%), the
highest density (2.451 gm/cc), and near highest hardness (Hv 127).

As stated early this is a general trend but well supported by engineering principles and not completely
consistent throughout the sample data.

It is beyond the scope of this analysis at this stage to consider how these measured parameters effect
other countertop material properties like water absorption, and stain resistance to name a few, But
well within the capabilities of additional analysis.

Evaluation, analysis, and conclusions prepared by:

Bob Horvath, PhD, MBA
B.Horvath, LLC
Department of Material Science and Engineering

Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey
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Directors' Report

Your Directors present their repore on Caesarstone Australia Pty Lid (the ‘Company’) for the financial vear
ended 31 December 2014.

Directors

The names of the Directors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are:

- Yair Averbuch

- Yos Shiran

- Josef Rein (resigned 30/1/2014)

- David Cullen (appointed 30/1/2014)

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year 1o the date of this report uniess otherwise
stated.

Operating results

The results of the company for the financial year after providing for income tax amounted to a profit of

$2,688,183 (2013: $1,804,171) atcribucable to members of the company.

Review of operations

A review of the operations of the Company during the financial year and the results of those operations found
that the changes in market demand and competition have seen an increase in sales of 27.4% to $118,819,201.

Principal activities

The principal acuvity of the company during the financial year was the importing and local distribution of
quartz stone slabs. No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year.

Events arising since the end of the reporting period

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may
significanty affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
Company in future financial years.

Future development, prospects and business strategies

Likely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected results of those operations in future
financial years have not been included in this report as the inclusion of such informaton is likely to result in
unreasonable prejudice 1o the Company.

Environmental issues

The Company’s operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulation under a law of the
Commenwealth or of a State or Terrtory in Australia.
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Dividends paid or recommended

No dividends were paid o1 provided for during the year.

Indemnifying officers or auditor

During the financial year the Company paid an insurance premiurm of $18,056 (including GST) to insure the
Directors against maximuin Liabilities of $10,000,000 for costs and expenses incusred by them in defending legal
procecdings arising from their conduct while acting in the capacity of Disectors of the Company, other than

conduct involving a wilful breach of duty in relation 10 the Company. The insurance premium paid was n
respect of the period 1 April 2014 to 1 Apnl 2015.

No other indemnities have been given during of since the end of the financial year, for any person who 15 ot has
been an officer or auditor of the Company.

Proceodings on behalf of Company

No person has applied for leave of Court 10 bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervenc in any

proceedings to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company
for all or any part of those proceedings. The Company Wwas not a party t0 any such proceedings during the year.

Auditor's Independence Declaration

A copy of the Auditor's Independence Declaration as required under Section 307C of the Corporations
Act 2001 is set out on page > and fosms part of this repot-

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

P

D o1

Dated this & day of NZB 2015




@ GrantThornton

The Riati, Lewe! 30
525 Caffins 5t
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Comespondence to:
GPQ Box 4736
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T +61 38320 2222

F +51 38320 2200

E info.vic@au.gicom

W www.grantthanmion.com.ay

Auditor’s Independence Declaration
To the Directors of Caesarstone Australia Pty Limited

In accordance with the requirements of sectdon 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, as lead
auditor for the audit of Caesarstone Australia Pry Limited for the year ended 31 December
2014, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

a no contravenuons of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporatons Act
2001 in relation to the audit; and

b no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the
audit.

GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD

Chartered Accountants

M.A. Cunningham
Partner - Audit & Assurance

Melbourne, 6 May 2015

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd ABN 94 269 609 023
ACN 130 913 594
a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thornton Australia Lid ABN 41 127 556 389

“Gram Thamon' refars i the biand Lnder which e Grant Thorion member S provide kxsurance, L and advisony sandioes 16 heir chants andke s 10 v & more mamber Bms, &3 the
conizal reueres. Grand Thomion Austrafia Lid i & member bm ol Grant Thoomion intemasonal Lid (GTHLL GTIL aexd e member bms re nol & wirkdwide parinershp. G7 I, and each momber brm
i 2 sparate g endly, Senviosa s defivered by tha member fms. GTTL does nol provide tanviced 10 chiets, GTIL #0d it Member e arm nol agants o, and do nal ckiigale one another and
e i gl dor ore: ancther's acts of omEssoms (n e Ausirak anly, tha usn of h Lo Grars Thormaon” mey refer 1o Gaand Thomon Auwsi #a Liveted ABM 43 127 556 38 and &z

Aurstrifian tobsrkaries and rolend enstes GTIL i ot an Austatan retated antly o Grand Thomton Ausirada Limxied.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. Liabitity is limitad in hose States where a current
scheme applies.
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comptehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Notes 2014 2013

$ $

Revenue 2 118,819,201 93,286,315
Other income 2 186,980 1,035,455
Changes in inventories of finished goods (4,950,609) (6,393,755)
Finished goods purchased (84,573,874) (58,082,770)
Employee benefits expense (9,542,851) {9,886,999)
Depreciation and amnortisation expenses (406,802} {399,282)
Finance costs (132,217) (68,508)
Minimum lease payments expense 3 {(1,950,110) (2.077.978)
Showrgom and sample expenses {2,916,586) (2,724,332}
Other expenses {10,968,513) (11,910,579}
Profit before income tax 3,564,619 2.777.567
Income tax expense 4 {876,436) {973,386}
Profit for the year 2688183 1,804,171
Other comprehensive income: - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,688,183 1,804,171

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements
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Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2014

Notes 2014 2013
$ $

Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,714,163 1,273,103
Trade and other receivables 6 15,674,711 14,556,438
Inventories 7 25,510,362 20,559,753
Other current assets . 8 1,688,312 1,715,635
Total Current Assets 44,587,548 38,104,929
Non-Current
Plant and equipment 9 2,265,466 2,258,728
Deferred tax assets 12 1,095,489 902,214
Intangible assets 10 17,992,628 17,992 628
Tota) Non-Current Assets 21,353,583 21,153 570
Total Assets 65,941,131 59,258,499
Liabilities
Current
Trade and other payables 1 23,596,909 18,159,484
Current tax liabilities 12 134,071 993,201
Short term provisions 13 1,513,988 1,397 037
Total Current Liabilities 25,244,968 20,549 812
Non-Current
Deferred tax liabilities 12 23,094 25,828
Long term provisions 13 111,707 111,647
Total Nen-Current Liabilities 134,801 137,475
Total Liabllities 25,379,769 20,687,287
Net Assets 40,561,362 38,571,212
Equity
Issued capital 14 29,738,480 29,738,480
Reserves " 15 . 698,033
Retained earnings 10,822,882 8,134 639
Total Equity 40,561,362 38,571,212

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements
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Statement of Changes in Equity
as at 31 December 2014

Share Retained
Notes Capital Reserves Earnings Total
$ $ $ $
Balance at 1 January 2013 20,738,480 ’ 383,474 6,330,528 36,452,482
Profit for the year - - 1,804,171 1,804,171
Other comprehensive income: - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1,804,171 1,804,171
Employee share options in_Parent 15 - 314,559 - 314 559
Balance at 31 December 2013 29 738,480 698,033 8,134,698 28,571,212
Balance at 1 January 2014 29,738,480 698,033 8,134,699 18,571,212
Profit for the year - - 2,688,183 2,688,183
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2,688,183 2,688,183
Employee share options in Parent 15 . (698,033) - (698,033)
Balance at 31 December 2014 29,738,480 - 10,822,882 40,561,362

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2014
Notes 2014 2013
$ $
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit/({loss} from ordinary activities before income tax 3,564,619 2,777,567
Adjustment for .
- Depreciation & amortisation 406,802 399,282
- Interest income {33,592) (47,485)
- Interest expense 132,217 68,508
Changes in assets and liabilities
- Receivables (1,118,273} 1,047 217
- Inventories {4,950,609) {6,393,755)
- Other assets 27322 (58,525)
- Provisions and employee benefits (581,022) 534,069
- Trade and other payables 5,437,424 1,767 647
Cash generated from operations 2,884,888 94,525
Interest received 33,592 47,485
Finance costs (132,217) {68,508)
Income tax paid (1,931,665} {323,736)
Net cagh provided by operating activities 854,598 {250 234)
- Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Payment for plant and equipment (413,539) {424,631}
Net cash used in investing activities (413,539) {424 831}
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net cash provided by financing activities - -
Net increasef{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents held 441,059 (674,865)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,273,103 1,947 968
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18(a) 1,714,163 1,273,103

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Statement of significant accounting policies

“The Directoc’s have prepared the financial statements on the basis that the Company 1s a non-reporting entity
because there are no users dependent on 2 general purpose financial report. The financial report is therefore a

special purpose financial report that has been prepated In order to meet the requirements of the Corporations
Act 2001. '

These financial statements have been prepated In accordance with the recognition and measurement
requirements specified by the Australian  Accounting Standards and Interpretations and the disclosure
requirements of:

AASB 101; Presentation of financial statements

AASB 107: Statement of cash flows

AASB 108: Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors
AASB 1031: Materiality

AASB 1048: Interpretation and application of standards, and

AASB 1054: Australian additional disclosures

Caesarstone Australia Pty Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia and
is a for-profit enaty for the purpose of preparing the financial seatements.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepated on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs modified by
the revaluation of selected non-current assets and financial instruments for which the fair value basis of
accounting has been applied.

Adoption of new and revised accounting standards

‘The Company has adopted all the amendments o Australian Accounung Standards issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board, which are relevant to and effective for the Company’s financial statements for
the annual period beginning 1 January 2014. None of the amendments have had significant impact on the
Company.

There are a number of standards and interpretations which have been issued but are not yet effectve. The
impact of these pronouncements on Caesarstone Australia Pry Limited's repotted financial position and
performance has notyet been determined.

Management anticipate that all these pronouncements will be adopted in Caesarstone Australia Pry Limited's
financial statements for the fist period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued)

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Company in the preparation of
the financial statements. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless othenwise stated.

Accounting policies

Income tax

The charge for current income tax expenses is based on the result for the vear adjusted for any non-assessable
or disallowed items. Tt is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or are substantively enacted by the
end of the reporung date.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or liability,
excluding a business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
bability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the profit or loss except where it relates to items that may be
credited directly to other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted directly against
other comprehensive income.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the assumption
that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation that the company will
derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be realised to comply with the conditions of
deducubility imposed by the law.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all directly actributable
fretght, duties and other landing charges and are measured at actual exchange rates, and as such results in a
moving average.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued)

Plant and equipment
Each class of plant and equipment 13 carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including capitalised leased assets, is depreciated on 2 straight line
basis over their estimated useful life to the company commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of cither the unexpired term of the lease or the
cstimated uscful lives of the improvements.

The depreciaton rates used for each class of assets are:

Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate
Office Equipment 20 - 33%

Fixtures & Fittings 10 - 20%

Plant and Equipment 10 - 33%

Motor Vehicles (owned) 20 - 30%

Motor Vehicles (leased) Over the lease term
Leasehold Improvements 10 - 20%

The assets' residual values and useful lives are ceviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of the reporting
period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its cecoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greates than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are Jetermined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or
losses are included in the profit or loss.

Leases
Leases of fixed assets where substanially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but
not the legal ownership that are transferred to the company, ar¢ classified as finance leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Finance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability ac the lower of the amounts equal to the fair
value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease pavments, including any guaranteed
residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease kability and the lease interest
expense for the period.

eased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the
lease term.

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the nisks and benefits incidental to the ownership
of the asset remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the life of the lease term.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the company reviews the carryving values of its tangible and intangible assets 1o
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indicaton exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use,
is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the asset's carrying value over its recoverable amount
15 expensed to the income statement.

Impairment testing 15 performed annually for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives. Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generatng unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangibles

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition is initially recorded at the amount by which the purchase price for 2 business exceeds
the fair value atiributed to the interest in the net fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent assets
at date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Statement of significant accounting policies {continued)

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the company is measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which that enuty operates. The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars which is the
company's functional and presentation currency.

Employee benefits

Provision is made for the company's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by
employees to balance date. Employee benefits that are expected to be sertded within one year have been
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled, plus related on-costs. Employee
benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows
made for those benefits. Those cash flows are discounted using market yields on national government bonds
with terms to matuity that match the expected timing of cash flows.

Share-based employee remuneration
The company operates equity-settled share-based remuneration plans for its senior employees offering share
options in the ultimate parent Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Ltd.

All goods and services received in exchange for the grant of any share-bascd payment are measured at their fair
values, Where employees are rewarded using share-based payments, the faic values of employees' services are
determined indircctly by reference 10 the fair value of the equity instruments granted. This fair value is
appraised at the grant date..

All share-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an expease in profit or loss with a corresponding
credit to share opton reserve. Where there is an intercompany recharge to the value of the share-based
expense then an intercompany liability is created with the debit reversing the original share option resecve.

Estimates are subsequently cevised if there is any indication that the number of share options expected to vest
differs from previous esdmates. Any cumulative adjustment prior to vesting is recognised in the current
period.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events,
for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably
measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilides on the statement of financial position.

Revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upon the delivery of goods to customers which is the date of
transfer of sigaificant risks and rewards. All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax

(GST).

Baorrowing costs

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which
they are incurred.

Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Trade date accounting is adopted for financial assets that are delivered within timeframes
established by marketplace convention.

Financial assets are ininially measured at fair value plus transaction costs where the instrument is not classified
as at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs related to instruments classified as at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed to profit or loss immediately. Financial assets are classified and measured
as set out below.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets at fair value through profif or foss

Financial assets are classified ac fair value through profir or loss when they are held for trading for the purpose
of short term profit taking, where they are derivatives not held for hedging purposes, or designated as such to
avoid an accounting mismatch or to enable performance evaluation where a group of financial assets is
managed by key management personnel on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair
values are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued)}

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivatve financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that arc not
quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Held-to-maturity invastments

Held-ro-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed maturiges and fixed or
determinable payments, and it is the entity’s intenton to hold these investments 10O maturity. They are
subsequently measuted at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated as such or that
are not classified in any of the other categories due to their nature. They comprise \nvesunents in the equity of
other entities where there is neither a fixed marurity not fixed or determinable payments. They are measured at
fair value at each reportng date and any gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income unal
the asset is disposed, or it is determined to be impaired, at which time all cumulative gamns and losses are
transferred to the statement of comprehensive income.

Fair value

Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted mvestments. Valuation techniques are
applied to determine the fair valoe for all unlisted securities, including recent arm length transactions, reference
1o similar instruments and option pricing models.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilites are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual agreements of the
instrument. Financial liabilities ate classified as cither financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ or
other financial liabilities.

Financial fiabilities at fair value through profit of foss

Financial liabilities are classified as 'ac fair value through profit or loss' where the financial liability is either held
for uading ot it 18 designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss tecognised in the income statement. The
net gain or loss recognised in the income statement incorporates any interest paid on the financial liabihity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities {continued)

Other financial liabilities

Orther financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with
interest expense recognised on an effective yvield method.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense.

Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST.
Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of
investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Directors’ evaluate estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial statements based on historical
knowledge and best available current information. Esumates assume a reasonable expectation of future events
and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the company.

Key estimates - impairment

The company assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions speciftc to the company that
may be indicative of tmpairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are reassessed using value-
in-use calculations which incorporate various key assumptions. Refer to Note 10 for details relating to
tmpairment of intangibles and Note 6 for details of provision for impairment of trade receivables.

Key judgments - warranties

A provision of §834,344 (2013: $807,157) has been recognised for csumated warranty claims in respect of
producrs sold which are still under warranty at the end of the reporting date. The provision for warranties has
been based upon a percentage of sales for the past vears (including sales of the previous distributor) less the
amounts of actual warranty claims' costs incurred.

Key judgements - provision for obsolescence

Included in inventories at 3t December 2014 is an amount which the Directors believe may not be
recoverable. The amount totals $1,660,277 (2013: §1,791,783) and relates to Director's best assessment of the
expected loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgments {continued)
Key judgements - share-based payment transactions

The Company measurcs the cost of equity settled transactions by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the date at which they were granted. The fair value is determined using 2 Black Scholes
valuation model. The accounting estmates and assumptions relating o equity-serded share-based payments
would have no impact on the CATTYINg amounts of assets and liabilities within the next annual reporing period.

Comparative balances

When required by accounting standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in
presentation for the current financial year.
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2. Revenue
2044 2013
$ $
Sales revenie:
- Sale of goods 118,819,201 93,286,315
Total Sales revenue 118,819,201 93,286,315
Other income:
- Interest Received _ 33,592 47,485
- Other Income 153,388 987,970
Other Income 186,980 1,035,455
3. Profit before income tax
The result for the year has heen arrived at after {crediting) / charging the following items:
The following total remuneration was received or is due and receivable, by the auditor of the Company in respect of:
- Auditing and reviewing of the financial statements 125,500 98,500
- Other services 8,500 10,500
- Tax services provided by related practice of the auditor 34,010 57,010
Total remuneration of auditor 168,010 166,010
Rental expense on operating leases
- Minimum lease payments 1,950,110 2,077,978
4, Income tax expense
The components of tax expensef{benefit) comprise:
- Current tax 1,072,444 1,188,932
- Deferred tax {196,008) (216,536)
876,436 973,396
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

4. income tax expense {continued)

The prima facie tax payable on profit/(loss) from ordinary activities before
income tax is reconcited to the income tax expense is as follows:

20

2014 2013
$ $
prima facie tax payable on profiti{foss) from ordinary activities before income
tax at 30% (2013: 30%) 1,069,386 833,270
Add tax effect of.
Non-deductible entertainment 33,178 30,327
Non-deductible employes share options - 94,368
Less tax effect of:
Under/(Over) provision in prior year (16,718) 15,431
Over provision of deferred taxes in prior yea¥ in
relation to employee share options (209,410} -
Income 1ax expense!(beneﬁt} atiributable to profit from ordinary activities 876,436 973,396
The applicable weighted average effective tax rates are
as follows: 25% 35%
5. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand 1,714,163 1,273,103
6. Trade and other receivables
Current
Trade receivables 15,763,016 14,589,265
Provision for impaimment {88,305) {32,827}
' 15,674,711 14,556,438
7. Inventories
Current - at cost:
Total inventories 25,510,362 20,559,753




Caesarstone Australia Pty Limited 21
ACN 121 819 976
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014
8. Other assets

2014 2013

$ $

Current
Prepayments 462,312 489,635
Deposits (a) 1,226,000 1,226,000
Total other assets 1,688,312 1,715,635

(a) Deposits amounting to $1,226,000 at 31 December 2014 and $1,226,000 at 31 December 2013 are held by the
bank as security against financial guarantee over various leased properties. These are interest bearing deposits.

9. Plant and equipment

Office Equipment - at cost 401,289 1,613,605
Less: Accumulated depreciation (262,587) (1,432,723)
138,702 180,882

Fixtures & Fittings - at cost 187,427 194,054
Less: Accumulated depreciation {76,764) {175,934)
110,663 18,120

Piant and equipment - at cost 1,092,538 1,397,911
Less: Accumulated depreciation (474,405) (756,513)
618,133 641,398

Leasehold improvements - at cost 1,819,048 2,007,739
Less: Accumulated depreciation (421,080} (589,411}
1,397,968 1,418,328

Total property, plant and equipment 2,265 466 2,258 728
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a, Plant and equipment (continued)

Movements in carrying amounts

Movements in the carying amounts for each ¢l

and end of the current financial year:

ass of property, plant and equipment be

tween the beginning

22

31 Dacember 2014 Offico Equipment Fittings Equipment
$ $ $
Balance at beginning of year 180,882 18,120 641,398
Additions 53,757 112,083 104,131
Disposals - - -
Depreciation expense {95,937} {19 540} (127,396)
Carrying amount at the end of the year 138,702 110,663 618,133
—te
Leasehold
Improvements Total
$
Balance at beginning of year 1,418,328 2,258,728
Additions 143,568 413,539
Disposals - -
Depreciation expense {163,928} {406,801}
Carrying amount at the gnd of the year 1,397,968 2,265,466
31 December 2013 Office Equipment Fittings Equipment
$ $ $
Balance at beginning of year 128,178 39,124 713,403
Additions 141,331 - 63,294
Disposals - - -
Depreciation expense {08,627} {21,004} (135,298)
Carrying amount at the end of the year 180,882 18,120 641,398
Improvements Total
$ $
Balance at beginning of year 1,352,674 2,233,379
Additions 220,006 424,631
Disposals - -
Depreciation expense (154,352) (399.282)
Carnying amount at the end of the year 1.418,328 2,258,7_2_8__
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10. Intangible assets

2014 2013

$ 3
Goodwill at cost 17,992,628 17,992 628
Net carrying value 17,992,628 17,992 628
Non-compete agreement - at cost 1,000,000 1,000,000
Less: Accumulated amortisation {1,000,000) {1.000,000}
Net carrying value - -
Net carrying value of intangibles 17,992,628 17,992 628
1. Trade and other payables
Current
Trade payables 764,931 634,813
Other payables and accruals 2,474,450 1,580,843
Amounts payable:
- to ultimate parent entity 20,357,528 15,943 828
23,596,909 18,159,484

All amounts are short term and the carrying values are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.
12, Tax
ASSETS
Current
Income tax receivable - -
Non Current
Defermred tax assets comprige:
- Temporary differences relating to accruals 215,642 203,536
- Temporary differences relating to property plant and equipment - 249
- Temporary differences relating to accounts payable 221,815 102,649
- Temporary differences relating to inventory 143,832 132,926
- Temporary differences relating to provisions 514,200 462,454
Total 1,095,489 902 214
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12. Tax (continued)

2014 2013
$ %
LIABILITIES
Current
Income tax payable 134,071 . 993291
Non Current
Deferred tax liabilities compnse:
- Tax allowances relating to prepayments 23,094 25828
Total 23,094 25,828
13. Provisions
Analysis of total provislons
Current 1,513,988 4,397,037
Maon-current 111,707 111,647
1,625,695 1,508,684

Provision for warranties

The Company provides warsranty provision on all slabs for a period of ten years from the date of installation of the
products. The full provision amount is deemed to be current as the warranty can be claimed at any time within ten
years.

Provision for employes benefits

A provision has been recognised for employee benefits relating to annual and long service leave, I calculating the
present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long service leave being taken is
based on historical data. The measurement and recognition criteria relfating to employee benefits has been included in
Note 1 to the financial statemnents.

14. Movements in contributed equity

Ordinary shares jssued and fully paid:

- Beginning of the year 29,738,480 29,738,480
. Shares igsued - -
Shares issued and fully paid 29,738,480 29,738,480

Fully paid ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the company in propartion to the
number of shares held.

At shareholder meetings, each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each shareholder
has one vote on a show of hands.
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15. Reserves

2014 2013
$ $
Share options - 698.033

Buring the year the ultimate parent entity, Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Ltd charged the subsdiary for the cost incurred from
issuing the share options in Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Ltd to the management of Caesarstone Australia Pty Ltd. This
resulted in a reversal of the share option reserve.

16. Capital management

When managing capital, management's objective is to ensure the Company continues as a going concern as well as
to maintain optimal returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. Management also aims to maintain a
capital structure that ensures the lowest cost of capital available to the entity, whilst maintaining an adequate cash
balance to meet operating cash flow requirements.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirernents.
The Company's capital resources consist of the following:

Total borrowings - -
Less cash and cash equivalents {1,714,163) {1,273,103)

Net debt {1,714,163) {1,273,103)
Total equity per statement of financial position 40,561,362 38.571,212
Total capital resources 38,847,199 37.298.109

17. Capital and leasing commitments

Operating lease commitments

Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but
not capitalised in the financial statements:

Payable - minimum lease payments:

- Not iater than twelve months 2,310,501 2,203,176
- Between twelve months and five years 5,222,483 5,149 849
- Greater than five years 542,595 853,181

8,075,579 8,206,206

The property leases are payable monthly in advance.
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17. Capital and leasing commitments (continued)

Pledges and guarantees

Caesarstone Australia has four guarantees outstanding with the ANZ Bank in respect of 3 premises in Victoria New
South Wales, Queensiand and Western Austratia in the amounts of $299k, $603k, $82k and $32k respectively, (2043
$290k, $603k, $82k and $176k). The bank guarantees are to secure performance by the Company of its obligations
under the lease agreements.

18. Cash flow information
2014 2013
$ $
a) Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash
Cash and cash equivalents 1,714,163 1,273,103

b) Non-cash financing activities
During the year, the Company acquired plant and equipment with an aggregate value of $Nil {2013: $Nil) by means of

finance leases.

19, Events after the reporting date

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations, 0f the state of aftairs of the
Company in future financial years.

20. Contingent assets and liabilities

No contingent assets of iabilities exist as at 31 December 2014.

21. Company Details

The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is:

Caesarstone Australia Pty Ltd
Unit 3/1 Secombe Place
Moorebank NSW 2170
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Directors' Declaration

The Dircctors of the company declare that:

1. The financial staiements and nates, as set out pages 6 w 26 are in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001:

(a) Comply with Accounting Standards as deseribed in Note 1 to the financial statements and the
Corporations Regulatuons 2001, and;

(b) Give a true and fair view of the company's financial position and changes in equity as at
31 December 2014 and of its performance for the year ended on that date in accordance
with the accounting policies described in Note 1 1o the financial statements.

2. In the Directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able
1o pay 1ts debts as and when they become due and payable.
This declaration is made in accordance with a resotudion of the Boacd of Directors.

Director

Dated this & dayof W= 2015
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Independent Auditor's Report W v GraAROION COM 29
To the Members of Caesarstone Australia Pty Limited
We have audited the accompanying financial report, being 2 special purpose financial report, of
Caesarstone Australia Pty Limited (the “Company”), which comprises the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then caded,
notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information and the directors’ declaration of the company .

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparaton of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view and have determined that the accounting policies used and described
in Note 1 to the financial repott, which form part of the financial report, ar¢c appropnate to
meet the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the needs of the members. The
Directors’ responsibility also includes such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errof.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require
us to comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether

due to fraud or error.

Grant Thorton Autdit Pty Ltd AGN 94 269 609 023
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applies.
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In making those nisk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, buc not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of che
financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Iindependence
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the
Corporatons Act 2001.

Auditor’'s opinion
In our opinion the financial report of Caesarstone Australia Pry Limited is in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2001, including:

1 giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31 December
2014 and of us performance for the year ended on that date in accordance with the
accounting policies described in Note 1; and

i complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1
and complying with the Corporations Regulatons 2001.

Basis of accounting

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which
describes the basis of accounung. The financial report has been prepared for the purpose of
fulfiling the directors’ financial reporting responsibilites under the Corporations Act 2001, As a
result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose.

) /_
GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD
Chartered Accountants

M.A. Cenningham
Partner - Audit & Assurance

Melbourne, 6 May 2015
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The directors present their report to the member together with the audited financial statements of
Caesarstone South East Asia Pte. Ltd. (the “Company”) for the financial year ended 31 December
2013.

Directors
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are:

Goh Peng Hock
Yosef Shiran
Erez Schweppe
Yair Averbuch

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

Directors' interests in shares and debentures

The following directors, who held office at the end of the financial year, had, accordingly to the
register of directors' shareholdings required to be kept under Section 164 of the Singapore

Companies Act, Chapter 50, an interest in share options of the holding company as stated below:

Exercisable period

At
beginning At end
of the of the
financial financial
year year Vest date Expiry date
Name of directors and
corporation in which
interests are held
Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Ltd
(holding company)
Options to acquire ordinary shares
Yosef Shiran 687,305 286,377 31/3/13 1/1/19
Yair Averbuch 137,461 103,096 21/3/13 21/3/19
Erez Schweppe 44,675 33,507 21/3/13 21/3/19

Except as disclosed above, no director who held office at the end of the financial year had interest in
shares, share options, warrants or debentures of the Company, or of related corporations, either at
the beginning of the financial year or end of the financial year.
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Directors' contractual benefits

Except as disclosed in the financial statements, since the end of the previous financial year, no
director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract
made by the Company or by a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the director
is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest.

Auditor

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment as auditor.

On behalf of the board of directors:

Goh Peng Hock
Director

Yair Averbuch
Director

31 March 2014
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Statement by Directors

We, Goh Peng Hock and Yair Averbuch, being two of the directors of Caesarstone South East Asia

Pte. Ltd. (the “Company”), do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors,

(i) the accompanying balance sheet, statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and cash flow statement together with notes thereto are drawn up so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 December 2013 and
the results of the business, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the

financial year ended on that date, and

(ii) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will
be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due as the ultimate holding company has
agreed to provide continuing financial support to enable the Company to meet its normal

trade obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the board of directors:

Goh Peng Hock
Director

Yair Averbuch
Director

31 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Member of Caesarstone South East Asia Pte. Ltd.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Caesarstone South East Asia Pte. Ltd
(the “Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2013, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the financial
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”’) and
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that
they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profit and loss accounts and
balance sheets and to maintain accountability of assets.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Member of Caesarstone South East Asia Pte. Ltd.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of
the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs of the Company as at 31 December 2013 and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company for the financial year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Ernst & Young LLP

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
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Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2013

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Prepaid operating expenses
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Accrued operating expenses

Net current assets

Non-current liability
Loan from holding company

Net liabilities

Equity attributable to the owner of the Company

Share capital
Accumulated losses

Total deficit

Note 2013 2012
€ €
4 129,587 111,527
5 887,680 943,460
6 840,968 933,972
16,257 9,087
7 369,779 249,813
2,114,684 2,136,332
8 1,345,540 1,049,447
8 334,346 301,850
1,679,886 1,351,297
434,798 785,035
8 2,248,642 2,192,592
(1,684,257) (1,296,030)
9 49 49
(1,684,306) (1,296,079)
(1,684,257) (1,296,030)
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The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial
statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

Note
Revenue 10
Costs of sales
Gross profit
Other operating income 11
Selling and marketing expenses
General and administrative expense
Other operating expenses
Loss before tax 12
Income tax expense 13

Loss for the financial year, representing total
comprehensive income for the financial year

2013 2012
€ €

4,306,608 3,588,208
(2,946,876) (2,375,166)
1,359,732 1,213,042
59,470 26,062
(872,200) (844,500)
(562,805) (516,426)
(372,424) (377,743)
(1,747,959) (1,712,607)
(388,227) (499,565)
(388,227) (499,565)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial

statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

2013
Opening balance at 1 January 2013

Total comprehensive income for the
financial year

Closing balance at 31 December 2013

2012
Opening balance at 1 January 2012

Total comprehensive income for the
financial year

Closing balance at 31 December 2012

Share Accumulated Total

capital losses deficit
€ € €
49 (1,296,079) (1,296,030)
- (388,227) (388,227)
49 (1,684,306) (1,684,257)
49 (796,514) (796,465)
- (499,565) (499,565)
49 (1,296,079) (1,296,030)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial

statements.
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Cash Flow Statement
For the financial year ended 31 December 2013

Note

Operating activities

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment 12
Loss on disposal of office equipment
(Reversal)/provision on slow moving stocks 5

Operating loss before changes in working capital
Working capital changes:
Decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Increase in prepaid operating expenses
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase in accrued operating expenses
Decrease in advance billing to customer

Net cash flows generated from/(used) in operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activity
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4

Net cash flows used in investing activity

Cash flows from financing activity
Loan from holding company

Net cash flows from financing activity

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 7

2013 2012
€ €
(388,227) (499,565)
40,157 44,460
291 -
(8,064) 57,225
(355,843) (397,880)
63,844 56,590
93,004 (201,937)
(7,170) (2,833)
296,093 (94,538)
32,496 222,141
- (36,332)
122,424 (454,789)
(58,508) (8,156)
(58,508) (8,156)
56,050 4,750
56,050 4,750
119,966 (458,195)
249,813 708,008
369,779 249,813

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial

statements.
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2.1

2.2

Corporate information

Caesarstone South East Asia Pte. Ltd. (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated and domiciled in Singapore. The immediate and ultimate holding company is
Caesarstone Sdot-Yam Ltd, a company incorporated in Israel.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is located at 10 Bukit
Batok Crescent, #08-06 The Spire, Singapore 658079.

The principal activity of the Company is that of the distribution of building materials. There
has been no significant change in the nature of this activity during the financial year.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (“FRS”).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as
disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Euro (“€”).
Going concern assumption

The Company incurred a net loss of €388,227 (2012: €499,565) during the financial year
ended 31 December 2013 and as at that date the Company’s total liabilities exceeded its
total assets by €1,684,257 (2012: €1,296,030). These factors indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern depends the
holding company undertaking to provide continuing financial support to enable the Company
to continue as a going concern.

If the Company is unable to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, the
Company may be unable to discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business and
adjustments may have to be made to reflect the situation that assets may need to be
realised other than in the normal course of business and at amounts which could differ
significantly from the amounts at which they are currently recorded in the balance sheet. In
addition, the Company may have to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current
assets and liabilities. No such adjustments have been made to these financial statements.

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year
except in the current financial year, the Company has adopted all the new and revised
standards and Interpretations of FRS (“INT FRS”) that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The adoption of these standards and interpretations
did not have any effect on the financial performance or position of the Company.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective

The Company has not adopted the following standards and interpretation that have been
issued but not yet effective:

Effective for annual
periods beginning

Description on or after
Revised FRS 27 Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2014
Revised FRS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2014
FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2014
FRS 111 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2014
FRS 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2014
Amendments to FRS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities 1 January 2014

Amendments to the transition guidance of FRS 110 Consolidated
Financial Statements, FRS 111 Joint arrangements and FRS 112

Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities 1 January 2014
Amendments to FRS 110, FRS 112 and FRS 27 Investment Entities 1 January 2014
Amendments to FRS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for

Non-financial Assets 1 January 2014
INT FRS 121 Levies 1 January 2014
Amendments to FRS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee

Contributions 1 July 2014
Improvements to FRSs 2014 1 July 2014

- Amendment to FRS 102 Shared-based Payments 1 July 2014

- Amendment to FRS 103 Business Combinations 1 July 2014

- Amendment to FRS 108 Operating Segments 1 July 2014

- Amendment to FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 1 July 2014

- Amendment to FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures 1 July 2014

- Amendment to FRS 38 Intangible Assets 1 July 2014

The directors expect that the adoption of the standards and interpretations above will have
no material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application.

Foreign currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Euro, which is also the Company’s
functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the functional currency of the Company
and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency at exchange rates
approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items at the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to
recognition, property, plant and equipment other than freehold land and buildings are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset, if, and only
if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset
as follows:

Renovation - 3 to 5 years
Furniture and fittings - 3 to 5 years
Office equipment - 3 to 5 years
Warehouse equipment - 3 years
Computer equipment - 3 years
Computer software - 3 years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial
year-end, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An items of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when an annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to
be generated by the asset are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast
calculations which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units
to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are
generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss, except for assets that are previously
revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the
impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any
previous revaluation.
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2.6

2.7

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or cash-generating unit's
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is measured at
revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments
(a) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus,
in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement - Loans and receivables

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through
the amortisation process.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows
from the asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit and loss.

Regular way purchase or sale of a financial asset

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or
derecognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.
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2,

2.7

2.8

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
(b) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of other
financial liabilities, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement - Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in
the balance sheets, when and only when, there is a currently enforceable legal right
to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset is impaired.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Company first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Company
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.8

2.9

2.10

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is
reduced directly or if an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amounts
charged to the allowance account are written off against the carrying value of the financial
asset.

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets
has been incurred, the Company considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and short-term deposits that are readily
convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and includes all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location

and condition.

Where necessary, allowance is provided for damaged, obsolete and slow moving items to
adjust the carrying value of inventories to the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2.11

2.12

2.13

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will
be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using the current pre tax rate that reflects,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost.

Warranty provisions

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service
provided. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of
warranty-related costs is revised annually.

Employee benefits
(a) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”) scheme in
Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions defined
contribution to pension scheme are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related service is performed.

(b) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they
accrue to employees. The estimated liability for leave is recognised for services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at inception date: whether fulfiiment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 January 2005, the date of inception is deemed to be
1 January 2005 in accordance with the transitional requirements of INT FRS 104.

As lessee

Finance leases which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the
fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Any initial direct costs are also added to the amount capitalised. Lease payments
are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are charged to profit or loss. Contingent rents, if any, are charged as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.
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2.13

2.14

2.15

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the
asset and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding sales taxes or duty. The
Company assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as principal or
agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue
arrangements. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognised:

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon the transfer of significant risk and rewards
of ownership of the goods to the customer usually on delivery of goods. Revenue is not
recognised to the extent where there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the
consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

Taxes
(a) Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Current income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the
tax relates to items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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2,

2.15

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxes (continued)

(b)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the
end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except where the
deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
each reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity and deferred
tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill on acquisition.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the
criteria for separate recognition at that date, would be recognised subsequently if
new information about facts and circumstances changed. The adjustment would
either be treated as a reduction to goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if
it incurred during the measurement period or in profit or loss.
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2,

2.15

2.16

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxes (continued)

(c)

Sales tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax
except:

. Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item as applicable; and

. Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax
included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is:

(@)

(b)

a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

(i) It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation; or

(i) The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the balance sheet of the Company,
except for contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination that are present
obligations and which the fair values can be reliably determined.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties

A related party is defined as follows:

(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that
person:

(i) Has control or joint control over the Company;
(ii) Has significant influence over the Company; or
(iii) Is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a

parent of the Company.
An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means
that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Company or an entity related to the Company. If the Company is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Company;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);
(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a

member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).
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3.1

3.2

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets, and liabilities, and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the end of each
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liability affected in the future periods.

Judgement made in applying accounting policies
There are no significant judgements made in the preparation of the financial statements.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of each reporting period are discussed below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statement was
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

° Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over property, plant and equipment estimated useful lives. Management estimates
the useful lives of these property, plant and equipment to be within 3 to 5 years.
These are common life expectancies applied to similar categories of property, plant
and equipment. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological
developments could impact the economic useful lives of these assets, therefore,
future depreciation charges could be revised. The carrying amount of the
Company’s property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period is
disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

° Impairment of loans and receivables

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment, the Company considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or
significant delay in payments.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future
cash flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar
credit risk characteristics. The carrying amount of the Company’s loans and
receivables at the end of each reporting period is disclosed in Note 6 to the financial
statements.
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Cost
At 1 January 2012
Additions

At 31 December 2012
and 1 January 2013

Additions

Disposal

At 31 December 2013

Accumulated
depreciation

At 1 January 2012

Depreciation charge for
the financial year

At 31 December 2012
and 1 January 2013
Depreciation charge for
the financial year

Disposal

At 31 December 2013

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2013

Furniture Office Warehouse Computer Computer Motor
Renovation and fittings equipment equipment equipment software vehicle Total
€ € € € € € €

83,686 32,353 37,891 22,524 1,825 9,961 - 188,240
1,678 3,756 - - 1,468 1,254 - 8,156
85,364 36,109 37,891 22,524 3,293 11,215 - 196,396
- 1,014 2,383 1,038 4,858 47,480 1,735 58,508
- - (855) - - - - (855)
85,364 37,123 39,419 23,562 8,151 58,695 1,735 254,049
9,774 5,277 5,061 15,288 139 4,870 - 40,409
19,411 8,158 8,824 4,589 924 2,554 - 44,460
29,185 13,435 13,885 19,877 1,063 7,424 - 84,869
16,421 7,152 7,986 2,004 1,849 4,543 202 40,157
- - (564) - - - - (564)
45,606 20,587 21,307 21,881 2,912 11,967 202 124,462

39,758 16,536 18,112 1,681 5,239 46,728 1,533 129,587
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4,

At 31 December 2012

56,179

22,674

24,006

2,647

2,230 3,791 - 111,527

Property, plant and equipment
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Inventories

Balance sheet:
Finished goods

Income statement:
Inventories recognised as an expense in cost of sales

inclusive of the following charge:
- Inventories (written back)/written down

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables:

Third parties

Related parties

Less: Provision for doubtful debts

Other receivables:
Deposits

Total trade and other receivables
Add: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7)

Total loan and receivables

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 60 days’ term.

2013 2012
€ €
887,680 943,460
2,716,799 2,316,358
(8,064) 57,225
2013 2012
€ €
745,673 664,525
- 190,294
(23,134) -
722,539 854,819
118,429 79,153
840,968 933,972
369,779 249,813
1,210,747 1,183,785
They are

recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial

recognition.

Trade receivables denominated in foreign currencies at 31 December are as follows:

Singapore Dollar
United States Dollar

2013
€

569,443
41,363

2012
€

460,395
906

CAESARSTONE SOUTH EAST ASIA PTE. LTD. 29



Trade and other receivables (continued)

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

The Company has trade receivables amounting to €150,488 (2011: €116,293) that are past
due at the end of the reporting period but not impaired. These receivables are unsecured
and the analysis of their aging at the reporting period date is as follows:

2013 2012
€ €
Trade receivables past due but not impaired:
Lesser than 30 days 86,628 79,112
More than 30 days 63,860 37,181
150,488 116,293

Receivables that are impaired

The Company’s trade receivables that are impaired at the end of the reporting period and the
movement of the allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:

2013 2012
€ €

Trade receivables - nominal amounts 29,982 -
Less: Allowance for impairment (23,134) -

6,848 -
Movement in allowance accounts:
At 1 January - -
Charge for the financial year 23,134 -
Written off - _
At 31 December 23,134 -

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting
period relate to debtors that are in significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on
payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.

CAESARSTONE SOUTH EAST ASIA PTE. LTD. 30



Cash and cash equivalents

2013 2012
€ €
Cash at bank and on hand 369,779 228,127
Short-term deposits - 21,686
Cash and cash equivalents 369,779 249,813

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of one year depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Company, and earn interests at the respective short-term deposit
rates. The weighted average effective interest rate as at 31 December 2013 for the

Company was Nil% (2012: 0.21%) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies at 31 December are as

follows:
2013
€
Singapore dollar 326,576

2012
€

244,879

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the

following at the end of the reporting period

2013 2012
€ €
Cash and cash equivalents 369,779 249,812
Trade and other payables
2013 2012
€ €
Trade and other payables:
Amount due to holding company (trade) 1,204,722 921,100
Amount due to related companies (non-trade) 16,313 -
Other payables 125,560 128,347
Total trade and other payables 1,345,540 1,049,447
Add: Provision for warranty claim 145,244 10,173
Accrued operating expenses 189,102 291,677
Total accrued operating expenses 334,346 301,850
Loan from holding company 2,248,642 2,192,592
Less: GST Payable (42,985) (34,544)
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Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 3,885,543 3,509,345
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10.

1.

Trade and other payables (continued)

Amount due to holding and related companies

These amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and are to be
settled in cash.

Loan from holding company

The loan from holding company is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand on or
after 5 years. The loan is denominated in Israeli New Shekel.

Provision for warranty claim

Included in provision for warranty claim, a provision of €130,000 is recognised for expected
warranty claim on certain goods sold to a customer during the year. The provision amount is
made based on the management’s best estimate of the replacement cost. At the end of the
reporting period, no formal claim has been logged by the customer in relation to the claim.

Share capital

2013 2012
Number Number
of shares € of shares €
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
At beginning and end of the
financial year 100 49 100 49

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the
Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions. The ordinary
shares have no par value.

Revenue
Revenue of the Company represents invoiced value of goods sold less returns inwards and
discounts allowed net of goods and services tax.

Other operating income

2013 2012
€ €

Miscellaneous income 59,470 26,062

Miscellaneous income includes project secondment commission of € 25,462 (2012: €2,714)
which is calculated at 5% of the total project revenue.
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12

13.

Loss before tax

The following items have been included in arriving at loss before tax:

2013 2012
€ €
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 40,157 44,460
Employee benefits (including directors’ remuneration) :
- Salaries, bonuses and allowances 824,846 898,329
- Central Provident Fund contributions 60,139 70,153
Advertising and sales promotion 322,027 294,592
Professional services 21,747 35,332

Income taxation
Major components of income taxation

The major components of income taxation for the financial years ended 31 December 2013
and 2012 are:

2013 2012
€ €

Current income tax - -

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting loss multiplied by the
corporate tax rate for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013 2012
€ €
Loss before tax (388,227) (499,565)
Tax at statutory rate of 17% (2012: 17%) (65,999) (84,926)
Non-deductible expenses 8,342 18,690
Deferred tax assets not recognised 57,657 66,236

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss - -

Unrecognised tax losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has unutilised tax losses of approximately
€1,169,182 (2012: €830,025), that are available for offset against future taxable profits of the
Company, for which no deferred tax asset is recognised due to uncertainty of its
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recoverability. The use of these tax losses is subject to the agreement of the tax authorities
and compliance with certain provisions of the tax legislation.
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14.

15.

Related party transactions

(a) Sale and purchase of goods and services

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the following significant between the Company and related parties took

place at terms agreed between the parties during the financial year:

2013 2012
€ €
Sale of finished goods to:
- holding company - 87,120
- related companies 42,724 106,733
Purchase of finished goods from:
- holding company 2,913,736 2,184,253
- related company 13,427 18,377
Rental expense to a related company 48,018 62,126
Miscellaneous expense to a related company 13,918 9,461
(b) Compensation of key management personnel
Short term employee benefits 190,485 161,448
Central Provident Fund contributions 7,511 13,130
197,996 174,578
Comprise amounts paid to:
Director of the Company 197,996 174,578

Commitments

Operating lease commitments as lessee

The Company has entered into commercial leases on office and warehouse. The lease
agreements of the office and warehouse will be ending within a year with renewal option.
Operating lease payments recognised as an expense in the profit or loss for the financial

year amounted to €213,812 (2012: €219,420).

Future minimum rental payable under non-cancellable operating leases at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

2013
€
Within 1 year 228,449
After 1 year but less than 5 years 268,267

2012
€

163,119
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496,716 163,119
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16.

17.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and
whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables (including balances with intercompanies), are reasonably approximation of
fair values, due to their short-term to nature.

The loan from holding company has no repayment terms and is repayable only when the
cash flows of the borrower permits. Accordingly, the fair value of the amount is not
determinable as the timing of the future cash flows cannot be estimated reliably.

Financial risk management policies and objectives

The Company is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of
financial instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign
currency risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the
management of these risks.

The following sections provide details regarding the Company's exposure to the
above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the
management of these risks.

There has been no change to the Company's exposure to these financial risks or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments
should a counterparty default on its obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit
risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables. For other financial assets
(mainly cash and cash equivalents), the Company minimise credit risk by dealing
exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

The Company’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising
losses incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. The Company trades only
with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Company’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with
the result that the Company’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Exposure to credit risk

At the end of the reporting period, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk
is represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in
the balance sheets.
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17. Financial risk management policies and objectives (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk concentration profile

The Company determines concentrations of credit risk by monitoring the country
profile of its trade receivables on an ongoing basis. The credit risk concentration
profile of the Company’s trade receivables at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

2013 2012
€000 % of total €000 % of total

By country:

Singapore 569 76 460 70
Malaysia 6 1 - -
Indonesia 130 17 178 26

Japan 41 6 - -

Thailand - - 27 4

746 100 665 100

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are with
creditworthy debtors with good payment record with the Company. Cash and cash
equivalents, are placed with reputable financial institutions.

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is
disclosed in Note 6.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk
arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities.
The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of stand-by credit facilities.
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17. Financial risk management policies and objectives (continued)

(b)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets
and liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted
repayment obligations.

2013 2012
€ €
One year One to One year One to
orless five years Total orless five years Total

Financial assets:
Trade and other

receivables 840,968 - 840,968 933,972 - 933,972
Cash and cash

equivalents 369,779 - 369,779 249,813 - 249,813
Total undiscounted

financial assets 1,210,747 - 1,210,747 1,183,785 - 1,183,785
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other

payables 1,345,540 - 1,345,540 1,049,447 - 1,049,447
Provision for

warranty claim 145,244 - 145,244 10,173 - 10,173
Accrued operating

expenses 189,102 - 189,102 291,677 — 291,677
Total accrued

operating expenses 334,346 - 334,346 301,850 - 301,850
Loan from holding

company - 2,248,642 2,248,642 - 2,192,592 2,192,592
Less: GST Payable (42,985) - (42,985) (34,544) - (34,544)
Total undiscounted

financial liabilities 1,636,901 2,248,642 3,885,543 1,316,753 2,192,592 3,509,345
Total net undiscounted

financial liabilities (426,154) (2,248,642) (2,674,796) (132,968) (2,192,592) (2,325,560)

Foreign currency risk

The Company has transactional currency exposures arising from sales that are
denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The
foreign currencies in which these transactions are denominated are Singapore
Dollars (“SGD”) and United States Dollars (“USD”). Approximately 53% (2012: 18%)
are denominated in foreign currencies. The Company’s trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period have similar exposure.

The Company also holds cash and short-term deposits denominated in foreign
currency for working capital purposes. At the end of the reporting period, such
foreign currency balances are mainly in SGD and USD.

The Company also has currency exposure on the loan from its holding company,
which is denominated in Israeli New Shekel (“INS”).
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17.

18.

19.

Financial risk management policies and objectives (continued)

(c) Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’s profit before tax to
a reasonably possible change in the exchange rates of SGD, INS and USD against

EURO with all other variables held constant.

Profit Profit
before tax before tax
2013 2012
$ $
SGD/EURO - Strengthened 5% (2012: 5%) (18,487) (23,789)
- Weakened 5% (2012: 5%) 20,433 26,293
INS/EURO - Strengthened 4% (2012: 4%) (14,932) (19,214)
- Weakened 4% (2012: 4%) 16,176 20,815
USD/EURO - Strengthened 1% (2012: 1%) (3,844) (4,946)
- Weakened 1% (2012: 1%) 3,921 5,046

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholder, return capital to shareholder or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the financial years ended
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

Authorisation of financial statements

The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 were authorised for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 31 March 2014.
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